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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I call the

          3  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order. We

          4  have two items on the agenda. I'm going to skip to

          5  the second item first because it is a quick item,

          6  and we will be voting on this item.

          7                 The first item, which is actually the

          8  newsstands, we will take second.

          9                 Land Use Number 514, M800849 ZMQ,

         10  application submitted by Causeway Amusements for a

         11  second modification involving minor changes to

         12  design and layout of a parking lot on property

         13  located at 9201 164th Avenue.

         14                 This item was laid over from our

         15  Committee meeting on September 23rd. We have Vincent

         16  Petraro here to give us a brief presentation on the

         17  application, and I do mean brief because we all are

         18  familiar with this. There is one outstanding issue

         19  that we'll talk about.

         20                 Together with me here are my

         21  Committee members Christine Quinn, Melinda Katz and

         22  Al Vann.

         23                 MR. PETRARO: Thank you, Chair Avella,

         24  Chair Katz, Members Quinn and Vann, thank you for

         25  your courtesy.
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          2                 My name is Vincent Petraro from the

          3  firm of Petraro and Jones, we represent Causeway

          4  Amusements.

          5                 Just a very quick summary. This

          6  application was originally approved in 1981 for a

          7  rezoning to add a C2-2 overlay to an R2 zoning

          8  district on the back portion, meaning the portion

          9  not Cross Bay Boulevard but the portion behind Cross

         10  Bay Boulevard, and at the time a restrictive

         11  declaration was attached to the approval so that the

         12  portion behind, the portion facing the residential

         13  property on 92nd Street would only be used for

         14  accessory parking for a new diner that was being

         15  constructed and for at that time an amusement

         16  center.

         17                 The restrictive declaration was for

         18  ten years. In 1991 it was approved again.

         19                 In 2001, an application was filed to

         20  make the restrictive declaration permanent, meaning

         21  that at no time could this property, even though

         22  it's underbuilt in zoning would be built any

         23  further, and the property facing 92nd Street would

         24  only be used for accessory parking for the two uses,

         25  the diner still there and now a Staples Office
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          2  Center.

          3                 The community board approved it, and

          4  the Borough President approved the application

          5  subject to one condition, that a gate on 164th

          6  Avenue behind Staples be locked when Staples was not

          7  in operation. And just a word about that gate. The

          8  gate was not originally on a plan, the plan approved

          9  in 1981, but I think more importantly, the parking

         10  lot was always approved, always thought of as one

         11  parking lot serving both uses, and in fact more so

         12  for the diner.

         13                 If you look at the original Board of

         14  Estimate, three, four pages in on the documents I

         15  gave you, you'll see that the original approval in

         16  '81 said that the proposed parking lot was to

         17  support the new restaurant, and then a few lines

         18  down the applicant making a substantial capital

         19  investment in the new restaurant should also be

         20  secure in knowing that the accessory parking is

         21  legal and not subject to further variances.  Prior

         22  to '81 there was a variance.

         23                 So, in the interim, my client put a

         24  fence, which we now show on the proposed site plan,

         25  second sheet from the back, midway through the lot.
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          2  That fence was made not to divide the lot, but just

          3  for safety reasons, they noticed when the light

          4  would change on Cross Bay Boulevard, people would be

          5  making the turn into the diner, racing through the

          6  parking lot and coming out the other end to beat the

          7  light on Cross Bay Boulevard. So we put the fence

          8  there with the pedestrian walkway, not to divide the

          9  lot but to be more safe.

         10                 So, at this time we believe that is

         11  the issue, and I also submitted a letter to you

         12  which explains all of the reasons why we believe

         13  that this application should be approved, as City

         14  Planning approved it without this restriction.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

         16  joined by Committee Member, Council Member Eric

         17  Gioia.

         18                 Question about this gate.

         19                 MR. PETRARO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There seems to be

         21  a lot of confusion on it.

         22                 There is an existing gate with a

         23  pedestrian walkway through, correct?

         24                 MR. PETRARO: There's a fence without

         25  a gate, midway through the lot, with a pedestrian
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          2  opening.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There's no gate

          4  with the pedestrian opening? There's no gate on the

          5  pedestrian opening?

          6                 MR. PETRARO: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

          8                 I think that the confusion is, is

          9  that what the community and Councilman Addabbo has

         10  been asking for is a gate to the pedestrian walkway,

         11  and that that gate would be locked when both stores

         12  are closed, not when just one, because apparently

         13  one is open later than the other.

         14                 I don't know where it got confused

         15  because I've heard different stories from different

         16  people, but my office checked with Councilman

         17  Addabbo yesterday and with the community board, and

         18  that seems to be what they're requesting. They just

         19  put a gate on the pedestrian access and lock it when

         20  the last of the two stores closes.

         21                 MR. PETRARO: And 164th Avenue, no

         22  restrictions. Without speaking to my client I could

         23  tell you that we could do that. I could assure you

         24  that we will do that and we will make a change on

         25  the plan, I guess, and submit it to City Planning
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          2  and then to you. That's fine.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

          4  from Committee members?

          5                 MR. PETRARO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There's nobody

          7  else signed up on this public hearing. I will close

          8  it.

          9                 And I will ask Counsel to call the

         10  roll on this. Chair recommends approval.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Avella.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Quinn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Gioia.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         22  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         23  abstentions, and are referred to the full Land Use

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
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          2                 The next item on the agenda is

          3  preconsidered Intro. 20045209 LLY, basically an

          4  amendment to the Administrative Code of the City of

          5  New York in relation to the installation and

          6  maintenance of newsstands.

          7                 I will call up the first panel, and I

          8  believe it's led by David Woloch, Deputy

          9  Commissioner for External Affairs from DOT.

         10                 Now, if you would, you know, over the

         11  past several months, the Mayor's Office, your

         12  agencies, and the City Council have been meeting to

         13  come up with a compromise on the newsstand

         14  legislation. I think it would be helpful for

         15  everybody concerned, the people that are here to

         16  testify on it and the Committee members, if you

         17  could just go over what the current compromise says,

         18  what it means between what is existing and what it

         19  will do in the future.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I'd be

         21  happy to. I think what you're asking for is

         22  reflected in the testimony, so I'll read the

         23  testimony and then you can answer any questions.

         24                 Good morning, I'm David Woloch,

         25  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at the New
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          2  York City Department of Transportation. I'm here

          3  with Jonathan Mintz, Deputy Commissioner of the

          4  Department of Consumer Affairs.

          5                 Also with us is Kerry Gould who is

          6  the DOT Project Manager for the Street Furniture

          7  Project.

          8                 Thank you for providing us with the

          9  opportunity to testify in support of the legislation

         10  relating to the installation and maintenance of

         11  newsstands pursuant to a coordinated street

         12  furniture franchise, and which will also allow

         13  advertising on such newsstands.

         14                 This bill compliments the street

         15  furniture authorizing resolution that the Council

         16  approved last month and is the final piece that will

         17  allow us to move forward in establishing a street

         18  furniture franchise.

         19                 As you know this franchise will

         20  expand the agency's successful bus stop shelter

         21  program to other public amenities, including

         22  newsstands and public toilets, with the possible

         23  addition of some other limited public amenity.

         24                 As we stated in our testimony in

         25  July, a coordinated street furniture franchise will
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          2  allow the City to transform the look and feel of its

          3  streets by creating an aesthetically pleasing

          4  streetscape without the burden of public investment.

          5                 In addition to the aesthetic benefits

          6  the City will also benefit financially from the

          7  creation of a street furniture franchise. In

          8  exchange for the right to sell advertising on street

          9  furniture such as newsstands, a private company will

         10  assume the substantial capital investment in

         11  designing, building, installing and maintaining

         12  these structures on an ongoing basis.

         13                 The City will collect previously

         14  unrealized income from advertising on such street

         15  furniture in the form of a franchise fee, which is

         16  usually the higher of the guaranteed or a percentage

         17  of gross advertising revenues.

         18                 We would like to commend this Council

         19  and this Committee for joining DOT and the

         20  Department of Consumer Affairs in making the street

         21  furniture initiative a priority.

         22                 Over the past two months, as you've

         23  said, Council member, we have worked in

         24  collaboration with the Council to resolve several

         25  concerns relating to the newsstand legislation that
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          2  we originally submitted in April. And as a result of

          3  these joint efforts, we have substantially amended

          4  the original bill that was proposed.

          5                 We feel that this amended bill

          6  reflects a true partnership between the Council and

          7  the Administration and we commend Council staff and

          8  the Speaker for their cooperation.

          9                 Let me highlight a few changes that

         10  were made to the original bill.

         11                 The Council had expressed concerns

         12  that the original bill would have required the

         13  newsstand operators to pay for the construction

         14  costs of the new newsstands, on an amortized basis

         15  over a 20-year period. The Administration, while

         16  hoping to capture additional revenue for the City by

         17  recouping the newsstand costs, agreed to drop this

         18  plan.

         19                 Therefore, the amended bill before

         20  you today does not require current operators to pay

         21  for their replacement newsstands. They will get

         22  theirs at no charge to them whatsoever.

         23                 The Council also expressed concerns

         24  about the potential relocation of existing

         25  newsstands, particularly those whose size may need
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          2  to be expanded in order to comply with the Americans

          3  With Disabilities Act.

          4                 We worked with the Council and

          5  amended several sections of the bill in order to

          6  address these concerns.

          7                 First, those stands that might need

          8  to be expanded in order to comply with the ADA will

          9  be able to remain in their current location until at

         10  least September 2006, at which point they will be

         11  relocated using the core public safety criteria.

         12                 This core public safety siting

         13  criteria includes the prescribed distance from fire

         14  hydrants, bus stops and subway entrances, as well as

         15  minimum safe clear path on the sidewalk and safe

         16  pedestrian service levels.

         17                 The bill makes it clear that they can

         18  move within a 500-foot catchment area of their

         19  original stand, at no cost so long as they identify

         20  a site that meets the core public safety

         21  requirements.

         22                 Second, we responded to the Council's

         23  concern that our current requirement for a DOT

         24  safety inspection every two years might prove

         25  onerous to many licensees.
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          2                 The amended legislation maintains the

          3  two-year renewal on the newsstand license, but

          4  lengthens the required inspection from every two to

          5  every six years.

          6                 Third, this bill reduces the DOT

          7  inspection criteria on an ongoing basis. The core

          8  public safety criteria noted above. It is our shared

          9  belief that a six-year renewal inspection schedule

         10  will enable the City to capture changes to sidewalk

         11  safety conditions without posing any negative

         12  impacts on pedestrians or raising safety concerns.

         13                 Any stand that failed such safety

         14  criteria during the DOT review, will also be

         15  extended the ability to identify a catchment area,

         16  relocation site, if available.

         17                 We certainly commend the effort that

         18  went into developing thoughtful compromises on this

         19  bill. Now that this landmark legislation is moving

         20  forward, we look forward to making this innovative

         21  street furniture program a reality.

         22                 We believe the program will be a

         23  great success and will benefit all New Yorkers.

         24                 Thanks again for allowing me the

         25  opportunity to testify before you today, and we look
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          2  forward to answering any questions that you have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

          4  Committee members.

          5                 Council Member Katz.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Woloch, for your testimony. I probably have other

          8  questions, but just to begin with, we've been doing

          9  a lot of negotiations, obviously, with the

         10  Administration, and although we're aware of the

         11  numbers that are grandfathered, I guess for want of

         12  a better term, I know we like that term, that are

         13  grandfathered and they may have to move because of

         14  ADA compliance.

         15                 Can you go over the exact numbers for

         16  everybody so that we have it for the record?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure. Let

         18  me say first off that I think the number that we

         19  expect having to move because of the ADA

         20  requirements are very minimal.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I understand

         22  that. But I'd like it on the record as far as how

         23  many you think are staying. I understand it's in the

         24  upper 200s and I understand it's about 20 but can

         25  you go over the numbers for us, because you must be

                                                            16

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  aware of them, right?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes, I

          4  just want to make sure I understand your question.

          5  You're referring to our estimate of how many might

          6  be affected by an ADA expansion?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And also how

          8  many are grandfathered and the total numbers of

          9  newsstands that will now be affected by this

         10  legislation.

         11                 And actually, at the end while you're

         12  talking, I'd also like to know exactly how many

         13  newsstands DOT expects in the end, including new

         14  ones, to come out of this contract.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Okay,

         16  I'll try and get that in order.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'll repeat it,

         18  if you like.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Say that

         20  again?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'll repeat it,

         22  if you like.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, you

         24  can prompt me if I falter.

         25                 First of all, we expect certainly
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          2  that the legislation will affect every newsstand, in

          3  that every newsstand is contemplated to be replaced.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: In terms

          6  of how many of the newsstands might have to get

          7  bigger in order to comply with the Americans With

          8  Disabilities Act, we can only give you a rough

          9  estimate, given that we don't know what the actual

         10  franchise structure design will look like.

         11                 Our sense of the minimums, and our

         12  own field measurements of existing stands, suggest

         13  that the maximum number should be no more than 20,

         14  and the way we reach that number was by taking a

         15  look at how many stands had current widths that were

         16  less than three feet which is our general sense of

         17  what the ADA would require, so that an operator who

         18  is in a wheelchair could access that stand in order

         19  to work.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So by definition

         21  that would mean that there's about 280 that are

         22  basically grandfathered for the six-year time

         23  period?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I'm

         25  sorry, say it one more time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: For purposes of

          3  ADA.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes,

          5  everyone else --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You seem to be

          7  wondering what I'm talking about.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I

          9  couldn't quite hear part of what you said.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: To be honest

         11  about it, we've been discussing this now for three

         12  months, two, three months. So, explain if you think

         13  I'm using the wrong language.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No, no, I

         15  think you've got it right. The expectation is that

         16  the rest of the stands would be able to be replaced

         17  at the current footprint.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, so that's

         19  about 300 stands. Do you have an estimation, and it

         20  may be too early, about how many new newsstands that

         21  you're thinking of under the whole sidewalk

         22  coordinated furniture, about?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No, in

         24  the RFP that we expect to go out, the limit on that

         25  would be 430 during the initial roll-out. There are
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          2  about 310 newsstands.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. So, you're

          4  expecting about 120 more?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Up to. Up

          6  to. That's assuming that people applied.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: (Not

          8  identified for the record.) And just to clarify, the

          9  same ability for anyone who wants to apply for a

         10  newsstand that exists now will exist in the future,

         11  the desire for somebody to enter into the business

         12  is not altered.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you go over,

         14  is there -- and I understand through negotiations

         15  this came up quite a bit, and it was quite a

         16  sticking point, so I just want to clarify, about

         17  what would force a newsstand to move, and how would

         18  they be able to stay?

         19                 Under the new newsstands I understand

         20  that it's sort of first come, first served, with the

         21  other street furniture, but under the newsstands

         22  that are now on, in franchises and in part of the

         23  agreement and part of the 280 that we're talking

         24  about, can you just describe the relationship

         25  between those newsstands and when they may be forced
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          2  to move relative to other street furniture or curb

          3  cuts that are on the street now?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

          5  based on the compromise that's been worked out, the

          6  items that would require an existing newsstand to

          7  move is a very, very short list, and again we refer

          8  to it as core safety, core safety requirement, and

          9  that list includes pedestrian level service, the

         10  clear path in the sidewalk, and a few other items

         11  like fire hydrants and bus stops.

         12                 Again, the expectation is there would

         13  be very few newsstands among the current universe

         14  that would be required to move because of those

         15  criteria.

         16                 For new newsstands there remains a

         17  longer list of criteria.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So that would be

         19  basically under the otherwise create a hazardous

         20  condition provision in the legislation?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes,

         22  there is that provision, and, again, I think we

         23  expect to call upon that very infrequently.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, I

         25  appreciate your time.
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          2                 Like I said, Mr. Chair, you know,

          3  obviously we've all been discussing this for many

          4  months and I just thought that putting some of the

          5  numbers on the record, exactly when the newsstands

          6  might be required to move, even though they are

          7  within ADA compliance, might be a good thing for the

          8  record.

          9                 I appreciate your time and all the

         10  work that the Administration and the Council has

         11  done in the last few months.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Would you go into

         13  in greater depth, what's involved in the inspection

         14  schedule, because we're moving it from two to six,

         15  so what's really involved in that and how does that

         16  differentiate from just the license renewal?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The

         18  inspection that you're referring to is the

         19  Department of Transportation part of the process,

         20  and as you stated it's done every two years now, it

         21  will be going to six years.

         22                 That process currently for new

         23  newsstands, again, there's a lengthy list of

         24  criteria that need to be checked for the location of

         25  a newsstand.
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          2                 For the renewals, it will become a

          3  much smaller, much smaller list. So that process, in

          4  effect, becomes a little easier, in addition to

          5  happening less frequently, rather than two years, it

          6  will be six years. And going back to the previous

          7  question, it will revolve that core safety criteria,

          8  most of which is pretty straightforward, the

          9  location of whether it's in a bus stop, how close it

         10  is to a fire hydrant, I think the most complex part

         11  of that inspection is the pedestrian level of

         12  service analysis.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         14  from the Committee members?

         15                 Council Member Eric Gioia.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I understand

         17  the pedestrian count per minute per foot, if I

         18  understand, is eleven; is that right?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes. And

         20  in the bill that's what we're asking to maintain.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Will that be

         22  the same for bus shelter and toilets? Will they be

         23  subject to the same pedestrian count, the same

         24  streets?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No. No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: What about the

          3  street cafes, are they subject to the same count?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No.

          5  Sidewalk cafes are subject to the clear path

          6  requirement, not the pedestrian --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: They're not

          8  subject to a --

          9                 MS. GOULD: I just want to make a

         10  point about the sidewalk cafes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Excuse me, please

         12  identify yourself for the record.

         13                 MS. GOULD: I apologize. I'm Kerri

         14  Gould, the Project Manager.

         15                 Sidewalk cafes in the zoning text are

         16  actually, there are zones in the City where you

         17  cannot put in a sidewalk cafe application. So where

         18  they are allowed we feel as long as they meet the

         19  clear path criteria, that they don't need a level of

         20  service analysis.

         21                 Newsstands can really apply to any

         22  street in the City.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: If I could

         24  also add, the expectation, of course, is that the

         25  activity around the news -- we assume that
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          2  newsstands have customers, the activity that one

          3  expects at a sidewalk cafe is within the cafe, and I

          4  think that's also a relevant part of the

          5  distinction.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: And the pay

          7  toilets?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We think

          9  the activity will be inside the toilets.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: It's a hope I

         11  share with you as well.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: But people will

         14  be queuing up.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I'm sorry

         16  I couldn't hear you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: People will

         18  queue up? No, you don't think?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, in

         20  the authorizing resolution on street furniture, the

         21  pay toilet locations will be agreed upon by the

         22  Administration, and the Council.

         23                 Certainly pedestrian safety is a

         24  factor that the Department would look into in terms

         25  of making sure that any pay toilets, and I think
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          2  there can be up to 20, would be sited in a safe, in

          3  a safe manner. But not within the confines of this

          4  bill, of course.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Christine Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can you just

          9  elaborate a little bit for the question that Council

         10  Member Gioia was asking? I mean, I think we could,

         11  you know, cast one unanimous ballot that we hope

         12  everything that should happen in the toilet happens

         13  inside the toilet.

         14                 That said, and I say this without

         15  scientific data, but people probably are going to be

         16  in the toilet longer than they're in the newsstand,

         17  so there might be more of a line that would assemble

         18  around a toilet than a newsstand, or you know, God

         19  willing the newsstand are making that much money

         20  that they have a line for each of the papers. So,

         21  how is it that there isn't a count and that it's

         22  left more ambiguous, or vague, or up to kind of

         23  general safety determination?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, I

         25  mean, we certainly could do a count. I mean, the
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          2  specific criteria that DOT would use in siting the

          3  toilets hasn't been developed yet. At the end of the

          4  day, I think there is more concern about newsstands,

          5  because the universe is much, much larger. I mean,

          6  we're talking about up to 20 pay toilets

          7  potentially, and there may not even be that many.

          8  So, we're talking about a much smaller universe. So,

          9  the extent of the concern is probably not as great,

         10  but it certainly -- when it does come to siting

         11  them, will approach it within the same, within the

         12  same spirit.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I also

         14  want to add that the existing pedestrian level of

         15  service requirement on the pared down list of course

         16  exists today, and, in fact, that pedestrian level of

         17  service came out of negotiations with the newsstand

         18  industry years ago.

         19                 So, there is nothing new about the

         20  pedestrian level of service, really the only new

         21  thing is that it is now on a very short list, rather

         22  than a much longer list, of what might create a need

         23  for a renewal to fail.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The newsstands

         25  that are existing, the news structures are going to
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          2  be completely paid for by the City; is that correct?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I mean,

          4  they're going to be paid for by the franchisee.

          5  That's obviously going to be reflected in the bids

          6  for the franchise.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And there will

          8  be no cost at all to the proprietors of the

          9  newsstand?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         11  correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The structures

         13  are going to be uniform, is that correct? They're

         14  all going to be the same?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes.

         16  There's going to be a general prototyping. Part of

         17  the goal of doing this in the first place, aside

         18  from the revenue impact, is to create a more

         19  consistent, more aesthetically pleasing look

         20  throughout the City, and that would be part of it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That look

         22  consistency so-to-speak, is that for the exterior

         23  and the interior, or just the exterior?

         24                 MS. GOULD: Four is the exterior. And

         25  in the authorizing resolution there was a
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          2  stipulation that DOT will work with the newsstand

          3  industry and come up with some interior criteria

          4  that will be included in the RFP.

          5                 So, the newsstand industry will have

          6  input as to the inside of the stand in addressing

          7  their needs.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Actually,

          9  that's also in the bill.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can you tell me

         11  a little bit more about the interior criteria? I

         12  mean, I get like a uniform look outside, but what

         13  might that entail inside, like that everybody has to

         14  have the soda thing on the right versus the left?

         15                 MS. GOULD: Square footage for

         16  display. Really at this point I think it is up to

         17  the newsstand industry to give those ideas to us,

         18  because I don't operate a newsstand and probably

         19  don't have a good idea as to what it should be, but

         20  I think square footage for display, storage, as you

         21  said, what their electrical outlet needs are, things

         22  of that nature.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let's say, and

         24  I don't run a newsstand and nobody might ever do

         25  something like this, but let's say you didn't want
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          2  to have drinks, you just wanted to have newspapers,

          3  magazines and candy, would the interior requirements

          4  require that everybody sell soda and water?

          5                 MS. GOULD: No. We have no control

          6  over what's sold in the stand, other than the City

          7  controls what the cost is. I believe it's under $5.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: How you wanted

          9  to display your items would be up to you? I mean, if

         10  you wanted something in the front versus in the

         11  back, you know, all of that would totally be up to

         12  you? Or would the interior criteria kind of

         13  stipulate -- like if I stepped into a newsstand

         14  here, and then another one 20 blocks away, you know,

         15  I would be having deja vu all over again.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I mean,

         17  it's certainly my expectation that we try to address

         18  these actual concerns in 20-231 h 2, which talks

         19  about us consulting with an operator.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And it was a

         21  lovely section.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank you

         23  so much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I enjoyed it

         25  very much.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The idea

          3  being that we need to know what those concerns are.

          4  Obviously you don't want a franchise that's going to

          5  construct potentially 430 different internal

          6  designs, that having been said to the extent that

          7  there are needs, concerns, desires for flexibility,

          8  that's what we're looking to hear from the industry,

          9  and that's obviously what would make for a better

         10  bid.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let me just ask

         12  my final question, what's the role that the Arts

         13  Commission plays in all of this? Oh, no, I stole the

         14  Chair's question. I'm sorry.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The role

         16  of the Arts Commission won't really change from what

         17  it is now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And I apologize

         19  for the ignorance, just tell me a little bit what it

         20  is, if you don't mind.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure.

         22                 The Art Commission signs off on all

         23  new newsstands, if there's a change to a newsstand,

         24  and they're obviously going to be an important part

         25  of this process, as they're going to be all in the
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          2  newsstands throughout the City. And they'll be

          3  signing off on and playing a major role in the

          4  development of the prototype, and also to the extent

          5  that stands will have their footprint changed, they

          6  will be signing off on those, as well.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The Chair

          8  actually just passed me a note, which is what I was

          9  going to ask, which is, if it's a uniform design,

         10  wouldn't the Arts Commission just review the RFP and

         11  sign off on it and then assuming that they were the

         12  uniform design, they wouldn't have to see every

         13  newsstand, right?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         15  certainly our expectation, that they will sign off

         16  on the prototypes of the design, and that as is true

         17  today, if a stand needs to be moved, of course

         18  they'll also do their contextual review.

         19                 For these stands that are already

         20  existing, keep in mind that that contextual review

         21  had already occurred.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And by

         23  contextual review you mean?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Looking

         25  at the surroundings to make sure that the stand
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          2  doesn't create an aesthetic --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Problem?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Problem,

          5  right.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Right,

          7  that it clashes with the environment around it, and

          8  for the most part the stands, the expectation is,

          9  you know, most of the stands will be staying where

         10  they are, so that won't be an issue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So in the

         12  future they'll have an input in the RFP about the

         13  design, and then their only role will be in

         14  placement context? Since they're all going to look

         15  the same.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Right.

         17  They're going to have to approve the ultimate design

         18  that is developed by the franchisee, and to the

         19  extent that there are footprint changes, there are

         20  relocations, they will continue, as they do now, to

         21  sign off on all those as well.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: And I

         23  just would like to add, if I could, the basic point

         24  here is we're not changing the Art Commission's role

         25  in this context.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes, I guess

          3  I'm just a little confused, I'm sorry I'm not

          4  getting it, why they would even have the same role,

          5  since they're all going to look alike. It seems to

          6  me, not in an effort to diminish the Art

          7  Commission's role and anything, but it just seems

          8  like there might be an unnecessary work there, since

          9  they're all supposed to look alike.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think,

         11  you know, a couple of things to keep in mind. One is

         12  there are some circumstances where there is

         13  obviously either a newsstand or a stand that has to

         14  be moved, or of course, contextual review as it

         15  exists now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY WOLOCH: In addition, there

         18  will be different kinds of stands, I mean we're

         19  hoping for a very limited pallet, but there will be

         20  slightly different stands that we contemplate will

         21  come out of this franchise, and so that would also

         22  be of interest to the Art Commission. But your basic

         23  point that the Art Commission sign off on

         24  prototypes, saves the Art Commission lots of time --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: -- You

          3  know, is all of our expectation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And the Arts

          5  Commission will only weigh in on the exterior or the

          6  interior as well?

          7                 MS. GOULD: Exterior only.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Exterior only,

          9  thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think all of us

         11  have this issue in mind. Let me take it from a

         12  different perspective. I'm bidding on the contract.

         13  I expect the Art Commission to review one design. If

         14  I was bidding on the contract -- bidding on the RFP,

         15  I would be a little bit concerned that, well, wait a

         16  second, I've got one design that's been approved

         17  now, now every new location is going to go to the

         18  Art Commission. Are they going to tell me that that

         19  I'm going to have to redo the design? Are they going

         20  to say, no, this design is not appropriate?

         21                 It's almost like it's creating an

         22  extra level of bureaucracy, which is really not

         23  needed, considering we're coming up with one or two

         24  separate designs.

         25                 I mean, this seems to be a real
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          2  issue.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: If every

          4  newsstand were to move, were to get substantially

          5  larger, then I think that would be an extremely

          6  important concern. But, again, the expectation is

          7  that the look is going to change for every newsstand

          8  in accordance with the general prototype, but the

          9  expectation is that for many they're going to be

         10  able to locate right where they are now, so that

         11  work won't really be there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Correct me if I'm

         13  wrong, but what do we have 300? I think you said it

         14  could go to 410. So, if a newsperson applies for a

         15  newsstand, they're going to have to go to the Art

         16  Commission?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Don't

         18  forget, Chairman, there's also contextual review of

         19  new locations.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This is going to

         21  remain an issue, I think.

         22                 We're obviously going to hear

         23  testimony from the industry, but I think this is an

         24  issue that is going to require further discussion.

         25                 Unless there are any other questions
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          2  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, Council

          5  Member Katz.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm listening to

          7  all of this. Yes, we actually are all in support of

          8  the bill, and you may find that hard to believe at

          9  the moment.

         10                 The Art Commission, now, you should

         11  understand there's a history, obviously, with the

         12  Art Commission and us, I will tell you that I have

         13  called up the Art Commission because newsstands are

         14  rejected because of too much pedestrian traffic, and

         15  then I've had other newsstands rejected because

         16  there is no pedestrian traffic, and when I've asked

         17  the Art Commission for standard criteria, the answer

         18  was, well, we don't really have standard criteria.

         19                 So, this is what we are concerned

         20  with. We expect coordinated street furniture to be

         21  easier on the industry and easier on the newsstands

         22  and easier on constituents and, obviously, easier on

         23  us with less bureaucracy, and I believe that's part

         24  of the reason we're all here today.

         25                 What I would love, and I don't think
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          2  you can do this right now, but I think you need to

          3  take it back to your folks, what I would love to

          4  see, I don't want to talk for everybody, is that if

          5  there is one design and that is approved of or of

          6  three designs or four designs to choose from, if

          7  that is approved of, then the Art Commission should

          8  approve it, and then everybody knows what they're

          9  dealing with. The newsstands can choose, or whoever,

         10  I don't recall under this legislation who chooses,

         11  but I think the newsstands get somewhat of an idea

         12  or somewhat to choose, they should be able to choose

         13  from one of the four, one of the five designs, the

         14  Art Commission has already approved that.

         15                 Where the sticking point I think

         16  besides that would be, is also that if they have

         17  criteria where they allow the newsstands to be on

         18  the street, we're really not aware of it. And I

         19  believe, and I'm going to ask the Chair to ask for

         20  this, that we would like to have standard criteria

         21  from the Art Commission as to when they approve or

         22  disapprove of something, if it's not only going to

         23  be the design.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I hear

         25  what you're saying. I relatively new to City
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          2  government, but not new enough to know that you

          3  don't want me to answer on behalf of the Arts

          4  Commission.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I understand

          6  that. I'm venting. The only thing I do want you to

          7  answer, for the Department of Transportation, and

          8  very quickly, I was talking about the safety

          9  criteria used for the existing newsstands and we

         10  spoke about that. Just to make the record clear for

         11  us and for everyone in the room. The existing

         12  criteria now for existing newsstands already exists,

         13  correct?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They exist

         16  where, right now?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: In the

         18  DCA rules and in the code.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         20                 So, today's legislation, should it

         21  pass, is going to bring those rules and regulations

         22  now into the Administrative Code?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The bulk

         24  of the siting, the bulk of the siting -- yes,

         25  exactly. Yes.  Sorry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, so we're

          3  basically moving that from regulations to us, which

          4  means the safety criteria really can't be changed at

          5  the whim of a Commissioner or anything like that. It

          6  really has to go through us again and to the City

          7  Council.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         10  much for your time.

         11                 Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         13                 I will just tell you one little story

         14  that I had with relation to the Art Commission, just

         15  to show you the frustration that we had.

         16                 I happened to notice on the Art

         17  Commission calendar that they were reviewing the

         18  color of paint for one of the City's bridges. Now,

         19  there's only like three colors, and it's various

         20  shades of gray, I called up one of the Commissioners

         21  and said you really have to put this on the agenda?

         22  Why can't the agency just make the decision

         23  themselves?

         24                 So, I think it's a concern that we

         25  all have that let's make the process simpler. I

                                                            40

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  appreciate your testimony. I'm going to ask that you

          3  hang out, because I think we'd like to call you back

          4  after we heard the testimony from the industry.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm going to call

          9  the first panel, and it will be Bob Bookman, and

         10  James, am I pronouncing it right, Garretson?

         11                 MR. GARRETSON: Yes.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good morning. My name is

         13  Robert Bookman. I'm Counsel to the New York City

         14  Newsstand Operators Association. I'm going to

         15  apologize right up front for anything that I may say

         16  which is over the line. For good or for bad. For

         17  good or for bad, I am very passionate in my advocacy

         18  of those who have no voice, and there is so much

         19  that I already heard here today, which is going to

         20  require some passionate advocacy.

         21                 Actually, I just want to get a copy

         22  of the proposal.

         23                 I want to thank the leadership for

         24  attempting to negotiate with the Administration that

         25  simply refuses to negotiate directly with the
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          2  industry, however, this is supposed to be a

          3  compromise, we are not amused. It is terrible,

          4  worse, in fact, than the current law, and worse than

          5  Intro. 441.

          6                 Here are some of the low-lights:

          7                 Existing newsstand operators will

          8  have to remove their existing structures that they

          9  currently pay for and own without any compensation,

         10  and must accept a new structure that they will not

         11  own, that DOT will decide to design both inside and

         12  outside the newsstand. And I have been inside and

         13  outside of government long enough to know what

         14  consult means and doesn't mean.

         15                 They will no longer be owners of

         16  their own businesses, but occupants of sorts, with

         17  no legal rights, not even a right to put up a

         18  newspaper rack, if they so choose.

         19                 There is a term for a person that

         20  lives on someone else's land, works that land, but

         21  has no rights, and it's called a serf. And if this

         22  bill is passed, you are converting proud business

         23  owners into serfs, and it would be a black day on

         24  the Council, and it would be a shame.

         25                 Councilwoman Katz, I recall about a
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          2  year ago when we first talked about this, you used

          3  an analogy of someone coming to your house. I don't

          4  think that analogy has changed here, with the

          5  exception of the dollar issue. But here is someone

          6  that's still going to come to your house, tear down

          7  your house, let you live in their house, but you

          8  will have no lease and no rights to do anything in

          9  that house, and have some huge bureaucracy with

         10  unnamed, you know, with undetailed rules as to what

         11  you want to do if you want to put up curtains or

         12  change the curtains in that house.

         13                 While existing licensees will not

         14  have to pay for the new structures, new licensees

         15  will have to, and the price talked about previously

         16  in Intro. 441, $40,000, is more than double what

         17  operators pay now to put up a newsstand, and will

         18  simply not be affordable, thereby, nicely preventing

         19  many new newsstands from opening, creating an

         20  economic barrier for new newsstands, which, in my

         21  opinion, was DOT's intent all along.

         22                 And while we pay for the stand, we

         23  still don't own it, which is a nice legal trick, if

         24  you ask me.

         25                 The criteria for remaining at your
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          2  existing newsstand is actually worse than the

          3  current law. What was said earlier today is simply

          4  not true. It does not reduce the criteria for

          5  renewals, it increases the criteria for renewals.

          6                 What is in this local law is less

          7  than the criteria for a new application, that's

          8  true, but is a dramatic increase for the

          9  requirements for an existing newsstand to be

         10  renewed. It also gives DOT unfettered discretion to

         11  deny the renewal licenses of existing stands.

         12                 While we have no objection to

         13  legitimate language that obviously reaffirms the

         14  City's right under the police power to remove a

         15  newsstand for emergencies or for life, health and

         16  safety reasons, the language used here goes way

         17  beyond that. Basically anything that they determine

         18  is a hazardous condition. That will prevent a

         19  renewal of an existing license.

         20                 And it eliminates existing exemptions

         21  in the current law.

         22                 For example, newsstands in existence

         23  since 1979 are currently exempt, notice I didn't use

         24  the word "grandfathered," from the nine and a half

         25  foot clearance adopted that year. But only so long
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          2  as the structure is not replaced.

          3                 Now that all structures are going to

          4  be replaced, the exemption is going to be lost, and

          5  dozens and dozens of newsstands rely on their once

          6  every two year renewals on that nine and a half foot

          7  pedestrian exemption.

          8                 The pedestrian count, rather than

          9  being eliminated, is now elevated from a

         10  questionable regulation, which previously through

         11  this Administration was never applied against any

         12  existing newsstand, to the Administrative Code

         13  itself, and it is a harsher pedestrian count than

         14  the DCA just adopted for sidewalk cafes on the same

         15  streets, and you notice the hesitation in their

         16  voices when they answered your direct questions

         17  about will there be pedestrian counts for all the

         18  other street furniture in this project and the

         19  answer is no.

         20                 And it's more than disingenuous to

         21  say there will only be 20 toilets but there's 300

         22  newsstands, there are 3,300 bus shelters, and

         23  there's a pedestrian, and they've been up there for

         24  years, and there's not a pedestrian count as we

         25  speak for a single one of them, and they are placed

                                                            45

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  in locations that newsstands cannot legally be

          3  placed in, yet, it seems to be okay for a bus

          4  shelter.

          5                 I will also point out, while it's

          6  rather technical, that the pedestrian count that has

          7  been in existence and applying to new newsstand

          8  applications, already takes into account pedestrian

          9  behavior, so that's also a disingenuous answer.

         10                 What I mean by that is, the way the

         11  count is done is you take the available clear path,

         12  such as let's say nine and a half feet, and to

         13  newsstands, not for anything else, it minuses four

         14  and a half feet to that clear path, to account for

         15  pedestrian behavior. So, you minus four and a half

         16  from the nine and a half, leaving you five feet, and

         17  then they do the math in the five feet.

         18                 So, it already accounts for

         19  pedestrian behavior. So, if there are two structures

         20  on the same sidewalk, and pedestrian behavior is

         21  supposed to say how many people is it safe for the

         22  sidewalk to accommodate per square foot, that safety

         23  is the same whether it's a bus shelter taking up

         24  sidewalk, whether it's a newsstand taking up

         25  sidewalk, whether it's a closed sidewalk cafe taking
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          2  up sidewalk. Yes, there are different clearances for

          3  those structures, but pedestrian count should either

          4  be the same for everybody, or it shouldn't be there

          5  for anybody.

          6                 And rather than properly limit the

          7  art commission, as you all correctly pointed out, it

          8  actually places them back in the law without any

          9  limitation to their arbitrary review.

         10                 I have a question, if this is not

         11  changing anything concerning the Art Commission, the

         12  way I've learned to read legislation is the

         13  underlined matter is new. Why is the entire Art

         14  Commission section here underlined, if nothing is

         15  new? And there's an answer for that.

         16                 And let me explain a little bit what

         17  contextual review means in the real world. And

         18  Councilwoman Katz, you explained it pretty well.

         19                 We were at the Art Commission, Mr.

         20  Garretson and I, representing applicants for new

         21  locations approved by DOT, approved by the community

         22  board, letters sent in by the local Council person

         23  where that was to be located supporting it, and it

         24  was denied by the Art Commission. Nothing to do with

         25  the design of the structure, nothing whatsoever, but
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          2  their contextual review meant, concluded that this

          3  Broadway and 94th Street location, there was too

          4  much other things on the sidewalk, it was too busy.

          5  And the next application on Broadway and 67th Street

          6  was denied because there's not much stuff there, so

          7  why should we add a newsstand. I really felt like

          8  Alice in Wonderland. The truth of the matter is that

          9  the Art Commission denies a significant number of

         10  applications that come to it based on this quote,

         11  contextual review.

         12                 Also, this legislation contains

         13  hidden traps, such as requiring that all replacement

         14  structures be ADA compliant.

         15                 Mr. Garretson, who knows a lot more

         16  about this than I do, will explain that better. But

         17  I do know that existing newsstands, including the

         18  new ones that we install, do not have to meet the

         19  ADA requirement.

         20                 What this means is that the new

         21  structures will have to be able to accommodate

         22  potential workers in wheelchairs, whether they exist

         23  or not. This will have two impacts: It will gut the

         24  interior display area of the newsstand making

         25  business impossible, and it will force many narrow
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          2  newsstands to increase their width, but the

          3  pedestrian clearance requirements will not be

          4  altered to accommodate these wider newsstands.

          5                 So, the number, which I was curious

          6  about, that had been bandied around before today,

          7  that they only think that there may be as many as

          8  only 20 newsstands that will need to increase in

          9  width before the ADA requirement, I was trying to

         10  figure out how they could possibly come up with such

         11  a low number and the answer was provided today, they

         12  only counted newsstands that were less than three

         13  feet in width.

         14                 Well, the ADA requirement that Mr.

         15  Garretson is going to tell you about, is going to

         16  require that a newsstand be five and a half to six

         17  feet in width. The three feet width is just for the

         18  wheelchair, we still have to have a newsstand.

         19                 So, there's a structure that goes

         20  around that three foot clearance, that three foot

         21  width to the wheelchair, and to be able to have a

         22  business, not just an advertising kiosk, and ADA

         23  compliant, you're going to have to have newsstands

         24  go up to five and a half or six feet in width.

         25  That's not going to be 20, that's going to be 120.
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          2                 So, there's going to be virtually one

          3  out of three, if not more newsstands, that are going

          4  to have to be moved, if you consist on this ADA

          5  requirement, and you don't have to. You don't have

          6  to, because the reason why we're still exempt will

          7  remain is that business is a mom and pop business,

          8  it doesn't matter if the franchisee is placing a

          9  structure down there, we are the operators, the

         10  licensee of that business, we have always been

         11  exempt and should always remain exempt.

         12                 Obviously we have always accommodated

         13  handicapped individuals in this industry very well,

         14  and if an individual requires that accommodation,

         15  then that structure should be exempt from the

         16  placement criteria, not say that you got to go out

         17  of business.

         18                 You also may have heard rumors that

         19  existing stands will be exempt for some years from

         20  its owners and discriminatory placement criteria -

         21  not true. What it does say is that next year DOT

         22  will inspect all the existing locations based on

         23  this new expanded renewal criteria, weed out or deny

         24  the ones they want to get rid of, and then they

         25  won't conduct another inspection for six years. But
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          2  by then a good portion of the industry will have to

          3  be relocated to less desirable spots or out of

          4  business all together.

          5                 When the surviving newsstands are

          6  replaced, there is also no limit to the amount of

          7  time they will be out of business, with no

          8  compensation or penalties to them, but only

          9  penalties going to the City, which I don't get it. I

         10  don't know how many of you can afford to live

         11  without a paycheck for two weeks or three weeks, I

         12  know the newsstand operators can't, and there's no

         13  reason why there shouldn't be a strict no more than

         14  three to four business day requirement before we

         15  place a new structure with an old one.

         16                 That's all it takes us historically,

         17  and we've been doing it for decades.

         18                 Unfortunately I can go on, you've

         19  been very generous with your time. We need the help

         20  of the Council to stand up and be counted when it's

         21  time to stand up and be counted to protect small

         22  business owners.

         23                 These people are your constituents.

         24  I'd like them all to stand up for a moment, anybody

         25  here who is a newsstand operator. Which of these
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          2  people do you want to choose to put out of business,

          3  because that's the choice that's going to have to be

          4  made here.

          5                 This is an ill-considered,

          6  over-reaching proposal that, quite frankly, has

          7  years of litigation and federal and state court

          8  written all over it. Thank you.

          9                 MR. GARRETSON: Good morning. I'm

         10  James Garretson, I'm a practicing architect in the

         11  City of New York. I have been designing newsstands

         12  in New York City for over ten years. It all started

         13  when I was asked by the Newspaper Operators

         14  Association to develop a prototype for the Art

         15  Commission so that one design, one design could

         16  automatically be designed for the operators and

         17  should be easily approved at each meeting. For a

         18  very limited cost.

         19                 I did that. It won an award. I've

         20  continued to design over 50 of these throughout New

         21  York City with the Art Commission.

         22                 I have also visited almost every site

         23  in New York, which I did for the previous RFP. So, I

         24  got acquainted with the existing newsstands, as well

         25  as the future newsstands.
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          2                 Basically I'm here to clarify this

          3  whole discussion of ADA. It's my experience with ADA

          4  that you require what's called a five foot turning

          5  radius. In other words, if a wheelchair comes in

          6  either from the side or the front, it's required to

          7  turn around, that's five feet. You then add

          8  structure which could be anywhere from four to six

          9  inches and you're almost at a six foot newsstand.

         10                 Now, my records show that there's

         11  significant number of newsstands existing in New

         12  York that are actually less than six feet, and the

         13  reason that is is because you're required to have

         14  your nine foot six clear path, which includes a

         15  place for people to stand and buy stuff, just for

         16  the record, and a one foot six rear distance from

         17  the curb, which means that you're left with, most

         18  cases the sidewalks aren't wide enough, and this

         19  relates to relocation within 500 feet, because

         20  certain neighborhoods don't have wide sidewalks. So,

         21  asking somebody to relocate in a neighborhood that

         22  doesn't have a wide sidewalk because you have to

         23  have a six foot newsstand, you're shooting yourself

         24  in the foot.

         25                 The other question is that on the six
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          2  foot newsstand or the five foot nine newsstands, if

          3  you have a five foot turning radius within the

          4  newsstands, you basically lose significant amounts

          5  of your sale space in the front of the newsstand.

          6  And that's what makes these tick. That sales space

          7  is very limited and it has to be changed all the

          8  time, it has to be flexible, otherwise the owner

          9  does not make money. I mean, you can't have

         10  something sitting there that doesn't sell.

         11                 The one thing that we do on our

         12  newsstands now is, if you have a newsstand

         13  owner/operator that is handicapped, he then designs

         14  the casework to satisfy his own handicap, and that's

         15  different from ADA.

         16                 ADA is a generic solution for

         17  everybody, it includes scooters, wheelchairs,

         18  everything, so anybody can go in the newsstand, when

         19  there's only two people to go in the newsstand, and

         20  when they go in the newsstand, they custom make

         21  their casework anyway.

         22                 So, I would strongly recommend that

         23  you do limit the ADA requirement just to the

         24  exterior of the newsstand for the public, and not

         25  have it apply to the interior.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

          4  Committee members?

          5                 Thank you, gentlemen.

          6                 The next panel.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry, I

          8  did have a question.

          9                 Can you just elaborate a little bit,

         10  you mentioned the possibility of lawsuits, you know,

         11  one of the things about the issue that's before us

         12  today is that there's revenue for the City that will

         13  come from it, so obviously it doesn't help anybody

         14  in the budget if we pass something and then ends up

         15  in lawsuits because then the revenue is never

         16  received, and whatever has been factored into the

         17  budget is then left without funding. So, I'm not

         18  asking you this question and then like threaten how

         19  you are going to sue us kind of thing, but tell me,

         20  if you can elaborate for me on what you believe the

         21  legal grounds are that one could bring lawsuits if

         22  they were going to.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: Surely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And if you had

         25  changes to those provisions that might address the
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          2  legal questions.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, this is the exact

          4  reason why we unsuccessfully for a year were asking

          5  to meet directly with the Administration so as to

          6  discuss the issues and come up with a way where the

          7  City would make new revenue, where we would get new

          8  newsstands on the street, but where we wouldn't have

          9  these legal problems they refused. The Council

         10  leadership did the best job it possibly could

         11  negotiating without us being there, but we don't

         12  think a real compromise would reach, and so if you

         13  have a mandatory program such as this, in which

         14  people lose control over their businesses to a very

         15  real extent, to which many people will be put out of

         16  business because of, as Mr. Garretson described, the

         17  sidewalks within 500 feet cannot accommodate the new

         18  six-foot newsstand, they're going to sue obviously.

         19  They're not going to go quietly. You know, they'll

         20  fight in the Council if possible, and if,

         21  unfortunately, you'll pass it anyway they'll fight

         22  in the courts and they'll fight after the courts. We

         23  will have a situation where rather than have a

         24  cooperative partnership with the franchisee and the

         25  newsstand operators, there will be an ongoing war,
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          2  and I don't think anybody wants that and it doesn't

          3  move the process along.

          4                 So, will there be lawsuits? Of course

          5  there will be. What are the issues? We haven't

          6  briefed it yet, but there's an obvious

          7  unconstitutional taking issue of private property

          8  here. Some of the attorneys from the newspapers will

          9  be speaking after me, and they I think very clearly

         10  in a letter to the Speaker and to the Chair of this

         11  Committee laid out a number of First Amendment

         12  issues and due process issues and equal protection

         13  issues, concerning newsstands once and for all not

         14  being treated worse and more harshly than other

         15  pieces of street furniture on the same sidewalks.

         16  And now that you're coordinating it into one under

         17  your control, the excuse that they may have had

         18  previously that they were separately owned and

         19  operated businesses and therefore there's no

         20  protection argument is gone. You've made it

         21  coordinated. Well then how do you have these

         22  clearances required for First Amendment structures

         23  but not for toilets, et cetera, et cetera. We're

         24  talking about state and federal issues, and we're

         25  talking about potentially years of litigation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hello, Mr.

          5  Bookman.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: Hello, Councilwoman.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just a poor

          8  country lawyer, however --

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: That used to be my line.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I do have a

         11  question. I am a bit confused on the interpretation

         12  that you have, an interpretation that I believe the

         13  Council and Administration has on certain things.

         14  So, let me just ask, the criterias you heard me ask

         15  DOT, the hazard criteria that the present newsstands

         16  will be judged on next year, they were previously

         17  rules and regulations, my understanding --

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: Not correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Partially correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If you just wait

         22  til I maybe finished my question it might be a

         23  little more convenient.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay. That's the

         25  pre-apology kicking in.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, let

          3  me just try this again.

          4                 My understanding is that the rules

          5  and regulations and DCA, both of which were

          6  standards for the newsstand industry last year,

          7  we've changed a lot of the rules and regulations to

          8  the administrative code, however they're basically

          9  the same as they were, through the rules and

         10  regulations, which I believe a lot of the newsstands

         11  had to go through the -- had to go through the

         12  testing last year in the Year 2002. So my question

         13  to you is, in your view, what is the difference

         14  between what the old rules and regulations and DCA

         15  was, what we put into the administrative code, and I

         16  guess to follow up with that, why you think that

         17  it's going to be so different from last year to next

         18  year?

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: If you go to page four

         22  of the proposal, that has the renewal criteria, A

         23  through G. I'll go one by one, which are in the

         24  current regulations of the Department of Consumer

         25  Affairs, and which are not: A is, B is, C is. D, E,
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          2  F and G are not. D, E, F and G are to certain

          3  extents part of the regulations in varying degrees

          4  for new applications at new locations, but not for

          5  renewals for existing newsstands. So, it is a huge

          6  expansion. Take E for example. Ten feet off of the

          7  corner offset. You know what we mean by the corner

          8  offset? Where the building line forms that corner.

          9  Existing newsstands do not have to clear that by ten

         10  feet. They never have. They just cannot extend

         11  beyond the corner property line.

         12                 New applications had to meet that ten

         13  feet. There are dozens of newsstands out there that

         14  do not meet that ten feet and will not be able to.

         15  It's not simply a matter of sliding over, there are

         16  generally other things there that they can't slide

         17  over, prohibits them from sliding over.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: DOT's rules and

         19  regulations don't have these either?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: DOT doesn't have rules

         21  and regulations concerning newsstands, it's one set

         22  and it's contained in the Department of Consumer

         23  Affairs' rules and regulations.

         24                 So, that's new. Extending into a bus

         25  stop is new. There are, you know, G, there's broad,
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          2  vague language that for any purposes that they deem

          3  to be hazardous, including but not limited to, we

          4  can deny a renewal is new.

          5                 The regulations were very specific

          6  over the years, as to very few things that an

          7  existing newsstand had to pass in order to remain

          8  and until this Administration, none of the existing

          9  newsstands were denied renewals, except in 1992 when

         10  the regs first went into effect, and a handful of

         11  newsstands had to adjust where they were located

         12  slightly. Since then and before April of 2002, when

         13  this Administration sent out unlawful 30-day

         14  eviction notices to dozens of newsstands, and

         15  frankly was never acted upon because of the

         16  intervention of the Council, some of the even A, B,

         17  C and D which were in there have been interpreted by

         18  this Administration dramatically differently and

         19  more harshly than those same regulations had been

         20  interpreted for the previous ten years. They don't

         21  deny that they're looking at it differently. They

         22  take the position and they're correct, we're a new

         23  Administration, we can interpret the rules any way

         24  we like. Now they don't deny that previous

         25  administrations looked at the pedestrian count as it
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          2  relates to existing locations, especially those that

          3  you have exempted from the nine and a half foot

          4  clearance requirement and said, you know, obviously,

          5  if we have grandfathered you to be on a six-foot

          6  sidewalk, and the pedestrian count minuses four and

          7  a half feet from that six feet and you have one and

          8  a half feet, obviously, and if you have any

          9  customers walk by the newsstand you can't pass the

         10  pedestrian count. So, other Administrations have

         11  said, well, we're not going to deny anybody's

         12  renewal for failing the pedestrian count if they're

         13  also exempted from the nine and a half foot clear

         14  path, it doesn't make sense.

         15                 So, that's the answer, and in fact

         16  there are still dozens of newsstands that have not

         17  received their renewal from the September 2002

         18  license renewal because they've been holding them

         19  back, because we believe, there's no reason for them

         20  not to have been issued a license by now, for a

         21  year, we believe that their inspections indicate

         22  they're going to fail even the existing renewal

         23  requirements, let alone these expanded ones.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, we're

         25  going to look all that up.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, I

          4  think that Mr. Bookman actually brings up one good

          5  point, that I think we're probably all on the same

          6  side, the Art Commission, you're right, it's

          7  underlined in here, as opposed to the old bill, and

          8  if they meant it to be the same as the old law, they

          9  wouldn't have had to underline it.

         10                 So, I do believe that that is a good

         11  thing to point out. Perhaps that was meant to be

         12  only the approval for, you know, the few designs by

         13  the Art Commission.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member Al

         17  Vann.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 Sir, you made a very I guess

         21  impassioned presentation on the issues, and I have

         22  an observation that is not to your core argument, I

         23  would say it may be a conscious-raising issue that

         24  may permeate a lot of things. In your presentation

         25  you equated a color of the day with the quality of
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          2  the day, a black day being a bad day. I'm sure that

          3  this is something that's probably unconscious, would

          4  you care to respond to that?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is unconscious,

          6  totally unintentional, and quite rightly pointed

          7  out. Thank you. I will keep that in mind.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: You're very

          9  welcome. It's not just for you --

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, you're quite right.

         11  Use of language is important.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Right. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         16  questions for this panel?

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel,

         20  we have a number of representatives here from the

         21  newspapers, calling up USA Today, George Freeman;

         22  and Constance Boland. George Freeman being from the

         23  New York Times, Jonathan Donnellan from the Daily

         24  News, and William Ward from the Daily News.

         25                 MR. FREEMAN: I'm George Freeman,
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          2  Assistant General Counsel to the New York Times.

          3  Thank you for hearing us, and I'll start for the

          4  newspaper publishers.

          5                 We are here basically because

          6  newsstands are the lifeblood of a newspaper

          7  publisher's distribution system. They're critical to

          8  attract citizens to read newspapers, which we think

          9  is good not only for us but good for the citizenry

         10  and for government as well. Newspapers often are an

         11  impulse buy. It's important to be as accessible as

         12  possible and in good locations where citizens

         13  walking by with time on their hands can buy a

         14  newspaper, if something is interesting in that day's

         15  news, they might buy a newspaper even though they're

         16  not a daily subscriber, et cetera. And the newspaper

         17  industry has always been incredibly concerned, and

         18  really startled at the decrease in the number of

         19  newsstands in the City of New York.

         20                 When I was a kid in the fifties and

         21  sixties there were 1,500 newsstands in New York

         22  City. Now as we've heard there are about 300. And

         23  albeit there has been a decrease in the number of

         24  newspapers in that time from seven to three, that's

         25  hardly the same ratio as a decrease of 1,200
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          2  newsstands in that period of time.

          3                 So, when the Administration brought

          4  us here to talk about their initiative here, we were

          5  interested because we always are interested in

          6  trying to quell this incredible decrease in the

          7  number of newsstands which makes our papers

          8  accessible.

          9                 Now, when they described the Street

         10  Furniture Initiative, it came with kind of a

         11  dressing that didn't make us too happy, which is

         12  that they would be selling advertising on the back

         13  of newsstands. Now advertising is how we make our

         14  money, so the fact that this was going to be a

         15  competitive vehicle against us was not something

         16  which initially made us terribly joyous.

         17                 Nonetheless, because we had

         18  assurances that this plan in the end would result in

         19  the cessation of the decrease of the number of

         20  newsstands, make them more attractive and even make

         21  possible an increase finally in the number of

         22  newsstands, we listened with moderate enthusiasm.

         23                 Key to us, we said, were a number of

         24  issues, the most important of which is the number

         25  and location of these newsstands. That really is
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          2  what, as I say, makes them accessible to the public.

          3  And we told the Administration that three things

          4  were critical for us to support the initiative. One

          5  was, for want of a better term, grandfathering, that

          6  it was essential that whatever happens, whatever

          7  promises are made and whatever legislation passes,

          8  what's essential is at least we keep the 300 stands

          9  we have now in the same place as they are now, and

         10  that this is not going to be used to either

         11  eliminate those stands or to move them further down

         12  the block where they're not as accessible, and where

         13  the newsstand operators won't be able to make as

         14  good a livelihood. And one of the tricks here is

         15  that the newsstands operators have to make a

         16  livelihood or else they'll go out of business and

         17  the City can say, well, it wasn't our fault they

         18  went out of business, but if they're not at the

         19  corners they're not going to be able to make a

         20  livelihood, and that's a critical thing.

         21                 So, we said that you have to

         22  grandfather, you have to allow the 300 stands we

         23  have now to stay in exactly the same places, exactly

         24  the same places, and we got assurances that that

         25  would be the case.
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          2                 Secondly we said, as has been alluded

          3  to a lot today, there has to be a streamlining of

          4  applications. If we're going to ever increase the

          5  number of newsstands, which is important to us, this

          6  process of applications and renewals has to be

          7  streamlined, and one of the big concerns we had, and

          8  obviously you have, too, is the Art Commission,

          9  which has been kind of an artificial hurdle placed

         10  into this process that has often cost people six

         11  months, or actually the ultimate rejection of their

         12  application. And we said, indeed as you have said,

         13  if all the new newsstands are going to be uniformed,

         14  sure the Art Commission has a role in okaying the

         15  uniform stand, but once that's the case, I don't see

         16  why they should have any role whatsoever left. This

         17  contextual review that's really based on a whole

         18  bunch of other factors but not arts, really seems to

         19  me, whatever its perceived advantaged, which I don't

         20  see any of, certainly is outweighed by the extra

         21  four month, six month, nine month that it takes to

         22  get through this yet additional bureaucratic hurdle.

         23                 And finally we said, look, what we

         24  really would like to see is an easing, not a

         25  harshening, of the criteria for newsstands to be
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          2  allowed to be at good locations, and prime among

          3  that is one of the subjects that you've already

          4  taken up, which is this pedestrian count issue.

          5                 And it strikes us that right now as

          6  it stands and as this proposal would have it, this

          7  pedestrian count formula is going to be applied

          8  discriminatorily towards newsstands, where it's not

          9  towards all sorts of other street furniture, as

         10  you've discussed.

         11                 In fact, the Administration would

         12  have to admit that they don't do it because of -- to

         13  sidewalk cafes, saying well pedestrians don't stand

         14  there buying the paper. You know, when you buy a

         15  paper you buy it in about two seconds. To the

         16  sidewalk cafe, you might study the menu, you might

         17  be on line where you always are outside the box of

         18  the cafe but rather on the sidewalk, you might be

         19  talking to a friend who is having dinner but you're

         20  outside it, so in fact, and all of those activities

         21  takes far longer than purchasing a newspaper. So,

         22  the notion that the strictest criteria is for

         23  newsstands in terms of pedestrian passageways and

         24  not for bus shelters, people waiting outside the bus

         25  shelter or sidewalk cafes seems clearly
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          2  discriminatory against the one service of all of

          3  these that is after all constitutionally protected.

          4                 The other thing in those criteria

          5  that are so disturbing to us is that as artificial

          6  and harsh as those criteria are, now they seemed to

          7  be raised from the regulation into the

          8  Administrative Code, what really should be the main

          9  criteria for safety is the history.

         10                 After all, these stands have been in

         11  these places for ten, 20, 30 years, and to my

         12  knowledge, there have been no accidents, no safety

         13  incidents because of them. So, to superimpose on top

         14  of a safety record some artificial formula which in

         15  fact is discriminatory against newsstands seems

         16  totally inappropriate, and we think is going to

         17  inevitably result in the continued reduction of

         18  newsstands, not either the cessation of the downward

         19  trend or the increase, which we would be assured

         20  would happen by the Administration.

         21                 So, when we looked at the bill in

         22  front of you today, we were really struck that none

         23  of these goals that we had, none of the three

         24  interests we had seemed to be there. The one that we

         25  are disturbed about the most is the grandfathering
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          2  issue, because even though -- and I heard the

          3  testimony of the Administration earlier, if you look

          4  at Section 9 of this bill, it basically calls for

          5  inspections in 2004 of all newsstands, whether or

          6  not they were there previously. Indeed they say that

          7  all newsstands will be inspected in 2004 and then

          8  there would be a six-year period.

          9                 But if you inspect all the newsstands

         10  and subject them, whether it be to the same rules or

         11  harsher rules, that seems to me to be the opposite

         12  of grandfathering. That means we're starting again

         13  anew, and even if the footprint is the same or is

         14  larger, we're going to inspect them all, and, you

         15  know, the devil is in the details, and the devil is

         16  in the implementation. A lot of these newsstands

         17  have remained, even know perhaps they did not pass

         18  all of the criteria. Now DOT is going to inspect

         19  them all and inevitably many of them will be told to

         20  move. Two things: That's no longer the

         21  grandfathering we were assured of; and, secondly, if

         22  they move down the block 500 feet, that's really

         23  into the middle of the block, where they really no

         24  longer are nearly as accessible to the same numbers

         25  of people as they are now.
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          2                 On a side issue I would just note

          3  that I can't imagine that the franchisee, the person

          4  that is going to spend, I don't know, ten, 20,

          5  millions of dollars to get this great business, is

          6  going to be very happy about having these stands

          7  move down the street either. That's clearly going to

          8  cut into the visibility of the advertising that both

          9  they and the City are getting paid for.

         10                 So, the City is being schizophrenic,

         11  on the one hand it wants money, but on the other

         12  hand it's going to move these machines down the

         13  street where they're going to get less money because

         14  the advertisers aren't going to pay them the same

         15  amount if they're not at the corner but they're down

         16  the street. So, it just doesn't make sense.

         17                 But to the extent where the

         18  Administration says that, you know, ADA only is

         19  going to affect 20 newsstands, and the other 280 are

         20  going to stay the same, that's simply not what the

         21  bill says. The bill says that all of them will be

         22  subject through inspection next year under these

         23  criteria, and I can tell you, many of them will fail

         24  under those criteria because they're probably not in

         25  compliance with every single criteria today, and
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          2  they haven't been for the past 15 years on the

          3  streets that they've inhabited, without a safety

          4  incident, without a problem.

          5                 So why, number one, are we subjecting

          6  them to these criteria; and, two, how can that be

          7  consistent with the grandfathering that we were

          8  assured of these 300 or 280 newsstands.

          9                 In addition, they're going to get

         10  wider, as the testimony as shown, both because of

         11  ADA and other requirements, maybe the new uniform

         12  accepted model will be bigger than some are now, and

         13  that in itself then will kind of engineer a

         14  rereview. But basically if you look at this statute,

         15  if you look at this proposal, everything is up to

         16  review under these new criteria next year.

         17                 So, I don't see where any newsstand

         18  is protected, and I just don't see how that squares

         19  with the grandfathering, much less an increase with

         20  the grandfathering that we were assured of.

         21                 Secondly, as has been pointed out,

         22  the Art Commission seems to have a more predominant

         23  role, so I don't see how the street lining interest

         24  is succeeded. And, finally, as I say, there are

         25  added criteria in terms of safety passage and
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          2  pedestrian passage and other siting requirements,

          3  all of which are making it more onerous and more

          4  likely that newsstands are going to be moved.

          5                 I'd like to just conclude and I thank

          6  you for your patience, by trying to articulate what

          7  to me is the core issue here.

          8                 For whatever reason, and, frankly, I

          9  can't understand it, the City, the Administration

         10  really seems not to like newsstands. Whether that's

         11  because the City is cleared for their application

         12  for the Olympics, and it seems to me if we want the

         13  streets to be like Indianapolis, you know, that's

         14  not New York, and I don't think Indianapolis is

         15  going to be a prime bidder for the Olympics. I'm not

         16  sure why we want to clean the streets to be as

         17  pristine as that.

         18                 But there's three points I'd like to

         19  make on why newsstands are important: Number one, it

         20  should be government's interest in making the public

         21  as informed as possible about the issues of the day.

         22  That sometimes is forgotten in this debate. But the

         23  notion of being happy as newsstands and street

         24  clutter go down the tubes, it seems to me totally in

         25  opposite with having an informed electorate, which

                                                            74

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  after all is the first responsibility of the

          3  government. And the notion that everything they

          4  seem, the Administration seems to want to do, is to

          5  decrease the accessibility of newspapers, it seems

          6  to me goes directly in the face of what should be

          7  their prime concern, which is in dangerous times to

          8  have the public understand the issues of the day and

          9  can make the proper decisions for themselves.

         10                 Secondly, newsstands are also an

         11  additional deterrent of crime. They have long been

         12  thought to be an extra eyes and ears on the street

         13  that help deter crime.

         14                 And, finally, they are part of New

         15  York's mosaic. As I said, I don't think we want our

         16  streets to be as pristine as Omaha's and the notion

         17  that somehow if we remove this clutter, our streets

         18  will be more attractive, I think is a misbegotten

         19  value in terms of what New York streets are really

         20  all about.

         21                 For all these reasons, why we could

         22  deal with the proposition as it started, if you read

         23  this legislation closely, it is inconsistent with

         24  the assurances we were given and the values and

         25  interest which I think are of interest both to the
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          2  public and to the publishers. Thank you.

          3                 MR. DONNELLAN: Good morning,

          4  Chairman, members of the Council, thank you for the

          5  opportunity to appear today. My name is Jonathan

          6  Donnellan and I'm Counsel for the New York Daily

          7  News.  On August 8th, 2003, I submitted a letter to

          8  Speaker Miller on behalf of the Daily News, the New

          9  York Times, Newsday, the New York Post, Village

         10  Post, Village Voice, US Today and Hoy, that I asked

         11  be made part of these proceedings and I've attached

         12  that to a copy of my statement that's been given to

         13  you.

         14                 In that letter I provided specific

         15  suggestions as to how a prior version of this

         16  legislation could be revised to better ensure the

         17  protection of existing newsstands and encourage new

         18  newsstands, while removing several provisions of the

         19  law that we believe to be constitutionally suspect.

         20                 Even though the proposed law has

         21  since been revised, these concerns haven't been

         22  addressed and in some regards the bill is worse now

         23  than it was then.

         24                 Mr. Freeman has addressed some of our

         25  broader concerns. I'm going to limit my comments
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          2  here today to the issue that was raised by Council

          3  Member Quinn about what the legal defects are as we

          4  see them at a minimum and Council Member Quinn and

          5  Gioia have already pointed those out in questions to

          6  prior people who have testified here today.

          7                 The proposed law doesn't permit any

          8  new license to be issued, or any existing license to

          9  be renewed unless approval for the location has

         10  first been approved by DOT.

         11                 Specifically there will be no license

         12  or renewal if the DOT determines that the newsstand

         13  "poses an obstruction to the free use of sidewalks

         14  by pedestrians at the time of review." That's in

         15  sections four and five of the proposed legislation.

         16  This language, if it were the only criteria, would

         17  be unconstitutionally vague and so far provides no

         18  objective standard, and could lead to an arbitrary

         19  decision by DOT.

         20                 Here an effort has been made to

         21  create in the legislation a safe harbor provision,

         22  at least with respect to renewals, presumably so

         23  that newsstand operators can be certain that if they

         24  comply with the provision, they will be assured

         25  renewal, and that's in section five, the addition of
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          2  paragraph D2.

          3                 The safe harbor provision, however,

          4  suffers from the same constitutional defects in that

          5  it's overly vague.

          6                 Significantly one of the criteria

          7  that must be met, which is subsection G, to qualify

          8  for the safe harbor, is that the newsstand does not

          9  otherwise create a hazardous condition.

         10                 There is no limiting definition for

         11  hazardous condition, however, it says in the

         12  definition that it includes but it is not limited

         13  to, there's no limitation on this. This would not

         14  pass constitutional muster. It leaves it completely

         15  to the discretion of the Department of

         16  Transportation, and despite the DOT representatives

         17  assurances this morning that they would expect to

         18  call upon it very infrequently, that does not cure

         19  the fact that it is unconstitutional. That should be

         20  stricken.

         21                 The second defect is the requirement

         22  that the newsstand meets certain pedestrian density

         23  standards which Mr. Freeman spoke to before, as well

         24  as Mr. Bookman, and these also apply to the original

         25  licensure through the applicable Consumer Affairs
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          2  regulations.

          3                 These also are constitutionally

          4  suspect, and I'm going to turn to those in a moment.

          5                 What is needed here is more precise

          6  and objective standard by which newsstand operators

          7  can measure their compliance with the law. This can

          8  look to the DCA's existing rules regarding DOT

          9  review and approval of new licenses, with the

         10  exception of the pedestrian density requirements,

         11  these standards, or others like them, would fit the

         12  bill.

         13                 It sets forth specific newsstand size

         14  and dimension requirements, the minimum distances it

         15  must be from corner curbs, bus shelters, building

         16  entrances, sidewalk cafes, subway entrances, fire

         17  hydrants, driveways and the like, as well as the

         18  minimum width, straight unobstructed sidewalk that

         19  must remain available to pedestrians.

         20                 These criteria governing size,

         21  distances and passageway width are reasonable,

         22  objective and similar to those governing other

         23  street commerce and street furniture.

         24                 The pedestrian density standard

         25  applicable to both licensure through the DCA
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          2  regulations and renewals through Section 5 of the

          3  proposed law is however, particularly troubling in

          4  three respects.

          5                 First, in the case of initial

          6  licensure applications, it prohibits newsstands

          7  wherever "DOT has determined that the level of

          8  service that would be created by the proposed stand

          9  at that location for the peak 15 minutes of the peak

         10  hour has a pedestrian flow rate equal to or greater

         11  than 11 people per minute per linear foot of clear

         12  path."

         13                 Any purported measurement of the

         14  "level of service that would be created by the

         15  proposed stand" is by its terms purely speculative,

         16  notwithstanding the pretense of mathematical

         17  precision. The most troubling feature, however,

         18  which applies to the renewal criteria in the law as

         19  well, is the period used to measure the pedestrian

         20  flow: the peak 15 minutes of the peak hour in

         21  measuring a 24 hour business. Employing this

         22  criteria, DOT could exercise its discretion to stake

         23  out a spot day in and day out hour by hour until

         24  foot traffic peaked during a single 15 minute period

         25  and reached a level sufficient to justify denial of
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          2  a disfavored license application. This standard is

          3  no more than an illusory constraint on DOT's

          4  discretion and for that reason is constitutionally

          5  suspect as applied to First Amendment activity.

          6                 Second, the DOT pedestrian density

          7  requirement subjects newsstands to inequitable and

          8  discriminatory treatment. Other forms of street

          9  commerce are not subject to this requirement. If

         10  they were, many such businesses would be eliminated

         11  by virtue of a peak 15 minute period of foot traffic

         12  on a single day of DOT's choosing.

         13                 This standard, if widely employed,

         14  could lead to closure of all street commerce in

         15  Greenwich Village, based on a peak 15 minute period

         16  during a busy weekend night, the Theatre District at

         17  curtain time, Midtown rush hour and elsewhere. If

         18  applied even more broadly to building-based

         19  businesses, pedestrian density restrictions could

         20  bring down the curtain on theatres and movie

         21  multiplexes, most of which have at least one peak

         22  15-minute period of box office lines and foot

         23  traffic every day. But here newsstands are singled

         24  out in a way it's not only inequitable, it

         25  discriminates against First Amendment activity in a

                                                            81

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  way that is unacceptable. At a minimum, newsstands

          3  should not be subject to any greater burden or

          4  harsher standard than any other street furniture or

          5  commerce. After all, the Supreme Court has held, in

          6  Lakewood versus Plain Dealer Publishing, circulation

          7  of newspapers is constitutionally protected, for the

          8  liberty of circulating is as essential to the

          9  freedom of expression as the liberty of publishing;

         10  indeed, without the circulation, the publication

         11  would be of little value.

         12                 Finally, the pedestrian density

         13  standard is irrational. If DOT determines that

         14  eleven or more people per minute per linear foot are

         15  capable of passing once a hypothetical newsstand is

         16  erected, then clearly there is no congestion

         17  problem. Or maybe there is no congestion problem.

         18  Ironically, under this standard, an even more

         19  heavily congested street where foot traffic is so

         20  clogged that fewer than eleven people are capable of

         21  passing in a minute would have to be approved by

         22  DOT. This absurd result is directly at odds with the

         23  stated aim of the rule, to keep pedestrian traffic

         24  flowing.

         25                 Even if the rule was found to be a
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          2  content-neutral time, place and manner restriction

          3  on First Amendment activity, it still must have a

          4  rational basis and advance that purpose in order to

          5  pass constitutional muster. This rule does not meet

          6  that test.

          7                 The irrationality of the provision is

          8  even more apparent as applied to license renewals,

          9  where a finding of eleven or more people per minute

         10  would demonstrate that an existing newsstand does

         11  not impede pedestrian flow even in the busiest

         12  areas, yet would lead to loss of a thriving

         13  location. Similarly, the risk of arbitrary and/or

         14  unequal application of this criteria is even more

         15  troubling in the renewal context because of the

         16  greater possibility that certain newsstands might be

         17  singled out for disparate treatment based on the

         18  publications they carry.

         19                 The proposed law should be amended to

         20  strike the pedestrian density requirement. Language

         21  should also be added to the same section expressly

         22  stating that the license approval and renewal will

         23  not be determined in whole or in part based on such

         24  pedestrian density criteria, notwithstanding

         25  anything to the contrary in the implementing
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          2  regulations.

          3                 The term "hazardous condition" should

          4  also be clearly defined, or the requirement stricken

          5  from the law's safe harbor for renewal. Licensure

          6  and renewal would then be based on reasonable and

          7  objective size, distance and sidewalk width

          8  criteria, just like other street furniture and

          9  commerce. Ensuring sufficient sidewalk width alone

         10  is an adequate safeguard against overcrowding. Sure

         11  that's enough to ensure a safe flow of pedestrian

         12  traffic.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  express our views. Also here with me today is

         15  William Ward, Director of Circulation for the Daily

         16  News to speak about the importance of the newsstands

         17  to our business.

         18                 MS. BOLAND: Good morning. My name is

         19  Connie Boland, and I represent USA Today, and I want

         20  to thank Mr. Chair and members of this Committee for

         21  giving the newspapers an opportunity to speak with

         22  you this morning.

         23                 USA Today sells a significant number

         24  of newspapers at newsstands. It is in the best

         25  interests of USA Today and its colleagues in the
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          2  newspaper industry in New York for newsstands to

          3  proliferate, not to fade away.

          4                 The ultimate effect of the proposed

          5  legislation is to render it so difficult for the

          6  newsstands to do business that we fear they will

          7  slowly fade from the New York Streetscape. This

          8  would truly be a loss to the citizens of New York,

          9  and therefore, the newspapers cannot endorse the

         10  proposed legislation as written.

         11                 I, too, would like to revisit the

         12  colloquy between Mr. Bookman and Chairperson Quinn

         13  with respect to the facial defects of the proposed

         14  legislation.

         15                 I understand that the parties would

         16  like this legislation to be enacted immediately,

         17  that it is their intention to add much needed

         18  capital to the City's coffers, and that they would

         19  like the legislation to be airtight and not subject

         20  to judicial challenge.

         21                 I respectfully submit that these

         22  objectives may not be achieved with the legislation

         23  as drafted.

         24                 As currently drafted, the legislation

         25  could easily be subject to suit by, for example,
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          2  disabled Americans, or the current newspaper

          3  operators -- excuse me, the newsstand operators.

          4                 The current newsstand operators could

          5  indeed bring a cause of action for an

          6  unconstitutional taking without just compensation.

          7                 Yes, they are being provided with a

          8  new, clean replacement newsstand, but they don't own

          9  it. Currently they own their newsstand.

         10                 Secondly, disabled Americans and

         11  others could possibly bring a challenge under the

         12  ADA to this legislation.

         13                 I am not aware that the City has any

         14  authority once it vests ownership in the franchisee

         15  to exempt that franchisee from compliance with the

         16  ADA until 2006.

         17                 The newspapers believe that such

         18  challenges would adversely affect and cause undue

         19  interruptions in the business of selling newspapers

         20  at newsstands. We do not want this legislation to be

         21  facially defective when enacted, we wanted to

         22  survive judicial challenges. Therefore, we propose

         23  that these defects be addressed.

         24                 In addition, the defects could

         25  adversely affect the advertising. I mean, what
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          2  business would want to pay for an ad on a newsstand

          3  when the franchise enabling legislation is under

          4  attack and the ad program may or may not become a

          5  reality. Or worse, the ad program may be interrupted

          6  in the middle of an add campaign.

          7                 I submit that these problems can and

          8  must be rectified with renegotiation and redrafting.

          9  Such changes need not undermine the ability of the

         10  franchisee to place ads on the sides of newsstands

         11  or for the City to raise money. I respectfully

         12  propose that such revisions be considered, discussed

         13  and adopted, so that this legislation, when enacted

         14  will pass constitutional muster and will survive any

         15  judicial challenge.

         16                 If the Council does believe that it

         17  has legal authority to support its enacting of

         18  legislation exempting the franchisee from compliance

         19  with the ADA, and I am not aware of any such

         20  authority, then the Council draft proposal exempting

         21  the newsstands for the limited period needs to be

         22  reinforced and more broadly written that the

         23  newsstands are exempt for any obligation to comply

         24  with the ADA at any period.

         25                 I believe that the newspaper
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          2  objections to the proposed legislation can be

          3  resolved.

          4                 Indeed, I've been involved in efforts

          5  to enact a street furniture franchise since the

          6  early days of the Giuliani Administration. And

          7  although the negotiations continue to be rather

          8  contentious, I have never seen the parties so

          9  willing to work together to accomplish their

         10  objectives.

         11                 I commend the Council, this

         12  Subcommittee, Speaker Miller and especially the

         13  staff of this Council for their achievement in this

         14  area. However, we still have more work to do. Please

         15  allow the newspapers, the newsstand operators, the

         16  potential franchisees, the Administration and the

         17  Council, to work together to craft legislation to

         18  further the interest of all in order to preserve the

         19  newsstand, which are an important vehicle for the

         20  dissemination of newspapers in New York.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. WARD: Good morning. My name is

         23  William T. Ward and I'm employed as Director of

         24  Circulation for the New York Daily News.  The New

         25  York Daily News identifies that newsstands are an
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          2  integral channel of distribution for all newspapers

          3  published and distributed within the City of New

          4  York and should continue to provide that important

          5  service to the thousands of citizens that frequent

          6  them.

          7                 Any erosion of service via these

          8  outlets would be detrimental to the Daily News in

          9  particular and hinder availability to a great number

         10  of readers who purchase both my product and other

         11  publications on a daily basis. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

         13  Committee members?

         14                 Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Very, very, very

         16  briefly.

         17                 I just want to be clear, is it the

         18  assertation (sic) of the newspaper industry that

         19  distance and sidewalk width criteria are the only

         20  criteria that we should be looking at when it comes

         21  to the placements or renewals of newsstands? Would

         22  that be a fair estimation of your position?

         23                 MR. WARD: I don't think so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. I know

         25  it's in the Daily News testimony, I was just
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          2  wondering whether the New York Times and the other

          3  folks -- well, first of all to the Daily News, would

          4  that be a fair estimation of what you're saying? And

          5  to the New York Times, would that also be your

          6  views?

          7                 MR. DONNELLAN: Well, what I'm saying

          8  is, in order to cure the vagueness in the law, which

          9  would make it unconstitutional or subject to

         10  constitutional challenge, you need to have objective

         11  criteria by which to measure the renewal standard,

         12  and the two provisions in particular, whether or not

         13  it creates a hazardous condition, to the extent that

         14  that's undefined, and the pedestrian density

         15  criteria for the reasons I stated don't meet that.

         16                 I pointed out, in particular, the

         17  size and the location requirements because they're

         18  already there, and those seem workable. Those are

         19  the same types of requirements or standards that are

         20  used with respect to every other piece of street

         21  furniture and street commerce, whether you look at

         22  pay phones, hot dog stands, anything else that's out

         23  there.

         24                 MR. FREEMAN: We're not opposing five

         25  feet of a fire hydrant, I mean some of these
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          2  location requirements, we're opposing the vagueness

          3  that seems to place too much discretion in two City

          4  agencies that seem to have an avowed dislike of

          5  newsstands, number one; and number two, of the

          6  pedestrian congestion formula, for reasons that

          7  we've already discussed. But what I think is most

          8  important, Council member, and what concerns me the

          9  most, and I don't want it to get lost in all of this

         10  discussion of this criteria, is the fact that if

         11  these criteria, whether it be the ones that are

         12  currently in the regs, or even worse, the ones that

         13  are proposed here, if these are in fact used to

         14  inspect every newsstand that exists as of the first

         15  day of the new franchise program, there is no

         16  question in our minds that many of them will not

         17  pass muster. Because many of them have probably been

         18  in violation of some criteria or other for the past

         19  15 years. And the give and take on this from the

         20  publisher's point of view was that in support of a

         21  vehicle that's going to include advertising, is

         22  going to disrupt the relationships we've had with

         23  the newsstand operators for all these years, we were

         24  going to get an assurance that there wouldn't be a

         25  diminution in the number of newsstands, and that is
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          2  just not the way the bill is written. The bill is

          3  written that everything is going to be inspected

          4  under these criteria or even under worse criteria,

          5  and the point is that if the newsstands that

          6  existing now haven't caused problems for the past 20

          7  years, even if they're increased by two feet because

          8  of the new design or by ADA requirements, they

          9  shouldn't have to leave.

         10                 And, so, my answer to you in general

         11  is that the criteria, other than the vagueness and

         12  pedestrian count criteria are fine, and if they have

         13  to be used for new applicants, so be it we'll have

         14  to live with that, but the whole point of getting us

         15  on board, getting the publisher on board, is that

         16  they wouldn't be used to start knocking down

         17  preexisting newsstands, and now despite the

         18  testimony of the Administration, that's what this

         19  bill provide, and that's, if you agree with me,

         20  that's what the drafters have to go through, but it

         21  happens three or four, it comes up three or four

         22  different times within Section 9 alone that they're

         23  entitled to reinspect, they have to -- new

         24  newsstands, any newsstands have to pass these

         25  criteria, et cetera, et cetera, and that's just
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          2  counter to the whole notion of grandfathering.  So,

          3  if they say, you know, it only applies to 20, 280 it

          4  won't change, the unspoken assumption is that those

          5  280 pass muster today, and we all know that they

          6  don't.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          8                 So, it's truly the number that you're

          9  very concerned with?

         10                 MR. FREEMAN: The number and the

         11  location.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do you have

         13  a question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thanks for

         15  looking to your right. I know you're a lefty person.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Was there a

         18  preexisting agreement between the Administration and

         19  the publishers that these 300 would be, quote,

         20  grandmothered in, or grandfathered in, if you will?

         21                 MR. FREEMAN: That's a good question.

         22  I wouldn't say agreement. I would say assurances.

         23  You know, I can't say, frankly, there was an

         24  agreement, but it was our understanding that they

         25  said -- in fact, I'll read you my notes actually at
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          2  the meeting with the Deputy Mayor who said, if I

          3  can, who said that he felt that newsstands were an

          4  integral part of New York's streetscape and added to

          5  the vitality of the streetscape, and it was the

          6  Administration's intention to increase, not

          7  decrease, the numbers.

          8                 So, I mean, there was no handshake,

          9  but there was an understanding that's what would

         10  happen, and we feel that this legislation is going

         11  to accomplish the opposite.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The Chair

         13  wanted me to apologize, he had to just run

         14  downstairs to go to a press conference, which is

         15  something you're all familiar with, but he will be

         16  back in a moment. I don't really have a question,

         17  just to say you've obviously, in my opinion, raised

         18  some very important issues and expanded on some

         19  issues within the bill that the newsstand operators

         20  representatives have raised, and we're not voting

         21  today so we're going to need to go and take a look

         22  at some of those, some I think may relate to

         23  drafting issues, some obviously relate to larger

         24  issues than that and we're going to have to have

         25  some conversations and get some clarification, et
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          2  cetera, from the Administration. So, I want to thank

          3  you for bringing such a thorough and well thought

          4  out testimony, that will be helpful to all of us as

          5  we move forward on this issue and try to address the

          6  legal issues, because as I said, it's not helpful to

          7  anyone involved in this process if we pass a bill

          8  that ends up in protracted litigation, it doesn't

          9  get more newsstands on the street and it doesn't get

         10  the City the revenues that we have budgeted as a

         11  result of this initiative.

         12                 MS. BOLAND: Excuse me, Council

         13  Member. The staff had proposed and suggested that

         14  the newspaper submit proposed revisions to statutory

         15  language, and we would endeavor to get those

         16  revisions to the Committee and staff next week some

         17  time.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That would

         19  be very helpful. Thank you very much for taking the

         20  time to do that.

         21                 Next we're going to hear from Vanessa

         22  Gruen, I believe it is.  I apologize if I'm

         23  pronouncing that incorrectly, who is in favor of the

         24  legislation and testifying on behalf of the

         25  Municipal Arts Society.
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          2                 After she testifies, so they can be

          3  on deck, we will be hearing from Bernard Uhtfelder,

          4  Steve Stollman, and Robert Brill. And the three of

          5  you will be in a panel together following this

          6  witness.

          7                 MS. GRUEN: Good afternoon, or good

          8  morning. My name is Vanessa Gruen. I represent the

          9  Municipal Arts Society, and I want to thank you for

         10  listening to us. We really do support the bill as

         11  written. We found, we studied it very carefully and

         12  we found very, very few mistakes with it, and very

         13  little fault, and basically we're here in support of

         14  it. But now I'm a little distressed because I hear

         15  the City Council, and everybody else, coming down

         16  upon the Art Commission, and the role that the Art

         17  Commission plays in the City of New York. The

         18  Municipal Art Society established the Art Commission

         19  almost 100 years ago and it's sort of our baby, and

         20  we're very fond of it, and basically I do think it's

         21  important that the Art Commission keeps its

         22  contextual review of where the newsstands, the new

         23  newsstands are to be located, because I don't think

         24  anybody wants to see a newsstand without advertising

         25  on both sides right in front of St. Patrick's
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          2  Cathedral on Fifth Avenue, and the Art Commission

          3  might be the only review agency that can prevent

          4  something like that from happening. So, I must say

          5  we feel very, very strongly about that.

          6                 But basically I do want to say that

          7  our prime goal is to get well-designed street

          8  furniture and that newsstands are designed to be

          9  both attractive and functional. A reasonable and

         10  controlled amount of backlit advertising panels on

         11  the sides of newsstands will be immeasurably more

         12  attractive than three corrugated metal sides. We

         13  urge that the designers of the structures be

         14  required to meet with the Department of

         15  Transportation and representatives of the newsstand

         16  operator to work out the details that make a

         17  newsstand functional.

         18                 It should be possible to design a

         19  stand that meets the franchisee's criteria for ad

         20  panels, but also allows the operator to sell his

         21  merchandise in the most effective and attractive way

         22  possible.

         23                 There is a long history in New York

         24  City of trying to design attractive and practical

         25  newsstands, and the designers should pay close
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          2  attention to what has worked and has not worked in

          3  the past.

          4                 We also want to once again ask the

          5  Council to ensure that the operators are able to

          6  maintain their operating independence. While it is

          7  clear to us that in those instances operators could

          8  use substantial assistance in improving their retail

          9  merchandizing expertise, in no event should they be

         10  asked to sacrifice their operating independence to

         11  the franchisee. We are concerned about the

         12  relationship between the media giants that are

         13  likely franchisees and the small business people who

         14  hold the operating licenses.

         15                 The independent operators have a

         16  distinct economic interest in maintaining a

         17  diversity of publications and other goods. Every

         18  effort should be made to maintain that independence.

         19                 As building lobbies and their

         20  newsstands are being closed off to the general

         21  public, the newsstand becomes increasingly more

         22  important to New Yorker's every day life. It is

         23  important that newsstands do not suffer any economic

         24  loss that would threaten their existence.

         25                 The entrepreneurial spirit that gave
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          2  rise to these newsstands should be allowed to

          3  remain, but an architecturally significant new home

          4  can only hope to enhance their profitability.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Any questions?

          8                 Okay, thank you very much.

          9                 And next we're going to hear from the

         10  last panel. These are the last people we have signed

         11  up to testify. Bernard Uhtfelder, Steve Stollman and

         12  Robert Brill.

         13                 Whatever order you would like to go

         14  in, go right ahead.

         15                 MR. BRILL: Madam Chair, members of

         16  the Committee, my name is Robert Brill. I'm an

         17  attorney here in New York. I represent a newsstand

         18  operator, as well as in the past have represented

         19  newsstand operators. I also am involved in

         20  telecommunications issues and am familiar with the

         21  interplay between DOT's highway rules, siting

         22  criteria, aesthetic considerations, as well as

         23  street furniture in general.

         24                 Let me first and foremost say at the

         25  outset the following: I testified before you before
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          2  at, I guess two hearings ago, about the inability to

          3  get the transcripts of the September 2002 hearing in

          4  which Mayor Doctoroff was posed questions by Member

          5  Quinn, Member Gioia, and others, Member Vann, about

          6  certain disparate issues at that point in time about

          7  the streetscape franchise in general.

          8                 One of those questions dealt with

          9  revenue raising and alternative means to raise

         10  revenues. That issue was raised today by Member

         11  Quinn. I asked Member Gioia did he ever get an

         12  answer to his question posed in the record by Deputy

         13  Mayor Doctoroff, and he said the answer was no,

         14  about revenue raising and alternative means to raise

         15  revenue. I have been trying still to get the

         16  transcripts. I have written letters to the Speaker's

         17  Office, I have called the Speaker's Office. It is

         18  unfathomable to me that you made a decision on the

         19  streetscape franchise in general without the benefit

         20  of the transcript of those hearings, which certainly

         21  on the newsstand legislation, we should have the

         22  benefit before we proceed to see, well, what did

         23  Doctoroff say on the record to you about different

         24  issues. The same goes for DOT Commissioner

         25  Weinshall, and other representatives, both some of
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          2  the prospective bidders for streetscape, the

          3  newsstand operators, myself and others. So, this is

          4  unfathomable to me.

          5                 And since what we're talking about

          6  today is a First Amendment platform, the newsstand,

          7  the Legville (phonetic) case, the case in New York,

          8  in the Southern District of New York, the Casparo

          9  (phonetic) case, those are the load stars that

         10  protect this platform under the First Amendment. So,

         11  it seems to me, not to have the benefit of an open

         12  record, a record that has been transcribed, is

         13  unfathomable, and I urge you not to vote and not to

         14  close the hearings until the transcripts from

         15  September of 2002 are made available to the public,

         16  as well as those, such as all the newsstand

         17  operators here, their livelihoods are affected.

         18                 Let me raise an issue which has been

         19  only briefly touched upon. In the United States

         20  there was one example of a streetscape-like

         21  franchise in which a newsstand component was at

         22  issue, at least that I'm aware of, and that's in San

         23  Francisco. One of the issues about the San Francisco

         24  newsstands is the limitation on space for the

         25  purveyance of the numbers of publications, such as
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          2  we see today in New York City newsstands, and have

          3  seen throughout the history of New York City

          4  newsstands. And by the way, as the history, go see

          5  the chapters in the book Gotham on the origins of

          6  the newsstand, okay? This is a venerable institution

          7  in the City of New York, it should be a landmarked

          8  institution, okay? It is venerable.

          9                 Well, the problem in San Francisco is

         10  they have limited sizes, and hence, here if you go,

         11  for example, down Second Avenue, and you go to your

         12  local newsstand or on the west side, you'll see

         13  papers from all over the world, some in Arabic, some

         14  in Swahili, we have dozens, if not hundreds, of

         15  publications. So, what you don't have in here at all

         16  are affirmative protections for the public, for the

         17  people of the City of New York, to still have the

         18  same size structure, okay, and I mean a guarantee,

         19  okay? You have in there this vague language about

         20  the maximum, minimum sizes, you should guarantee

         21  that the footprints haven't changed, and it

         22  shouldn't be for pedestrian traffic that should

         23  necessarily be your concern, your concern should be

         24  that the level of First Amendment veneration that

         25  goes on every day at New York City newsstands is not
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          2  only protected, but encouraged, and that's not in

          3  here, and that's a broad-based flaw.

          4                 I want to address, Member Quinn, your

          5  question about alternative revenue. You know, there

          6  is a way to harmonize all the value here. Now,

          7  unfortunately, one of the keystones that is taking

          8  the newsstands out of the streetscape franchise,

          9  okay? And what you could do is this, in terms of

         10  revenue raising, what we're talking about is a back

         11  panel, okay? You've heard I'm sure in any of the

         12  conversations with media representatives in the pay

         13  phone franchise, billboard industry hearings that

         14  you had, as well as I'm sure the streetscape

         15  franchise here, we're talking about a basic back

         16  panel at least, if not side panels. Well, you can go

         17  and ask Ben Wagner or any of the licensed media reps

         18  for the pay phones, well, what do you get for a back

         19  panel in both good times and bad? What's the City's

         20  cut? The City's cut, relatively speaking, is ten

         21  percent. Ten percent of gross revenue. So, we're

         22  talking about, hopefully, if you abide by what Mr.

         23  Freeman suggested, that you mandate in the

         24  legislation a fixed number of sites and you also say

         25  all the existing ones are grandfathered, because
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          2  they do have good locations, well, you can figure

          3  out, if we had a media rep program for newsstands,

          4  if we mandated design parameters, which I think they

          5  do today, but we figured in back panels, so the

          6  media rep enters into an agreement with the City,

          7  they commit to paying the City whatever the

          8  percentage is, they meet the design parameters that

          9  the City agency that's pertinent sets down, they put

         10  up the sign, or they put up the structure meeting

         11  the Art Commission approval on the design, and you

         12  get your revenues from day one.

         13                 So, it seems to me there's an

         14  alternative means where you get the design you want,

         15  you dictate whatever the DOT footpath regulations

         16  are, or other regulations for street criteria, you

         17  mandate a media rep program, you're going to get

         18  your advertising revenue from day one, you get the

         19  design you want, assuming the Art Commission

         20  approves it, you'll have your siting criteria

         21  maintained, as it exists today, and you go forward

         22  in life and you don't have necessarily all of these

         23  First Amendment issues that pop up, as well as the

         24  cultural issues about New York City.

         25                 Let me address the First Amendment
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          2  issue and echo something, but level it with

          3  experience I've just had in the last three weeks,

          4  okay? The bus stop rule, just as an example,

          5  extended to a bus stop. Now, I learned that the

          6  siting of bus stops in the ordinary course that are

          7  not MTA bus stops, so that's the franchise bus stops

          8  or the Hampton jitney-type bus stops, they in effect

          9  are done without public hearing, without public

         10  notice, unilaterally by a particular bureau of DOT.

         11  The MTA bus stops, we were told that's done by

         12  suggestion of the MTA to DOT, and is there public

         13  comment in hearing? Normally not. Only if it really

         14  grossly affects an area, it doesn't have a public

         15  common component. So, what happened in the last, say

         16  60 days? To accommodate the articulated buses, there

         17  have been unilateral extensions of bus stops. Now,

         18  what does that mean? That means if you look at your

         19  regulation, in effect the extension of a bus stop,

         20  which can happen without hearing and notice, and I

         21  had a situation of another street franchisee that

         22  had no notice of something that occurred, and

         23  there's an issue of permitting and losing one's

         24  permit as a result, if it's done unilaterally, you

         25  don't have notice, that means I'm legitimate on day
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          2  one, okay? I'm a happy licensee, and I've got my

          3  streetscape franchisee structure, Art Commission

          4  approved, all of a sudden, they unilaterally without

          5  notice extend the bus stop. Under the inspection

          6  regime that Mr. Freeman talked about, does that mean

          7  that I will have the situation which my structure

          8  might be lost? And if I can't meet the catchment

          9  rule, I'm out of luck, and that structure is out of

         10  luck.

         11                 Well, there is a case where, though

         12  it doesn't, it says extend to a bus stop, well,

         13  that's a nice rule, but you haven't given a public

         14  notice obligation here, a public hearing obligation.

         15  Your standard is a mere extension which could happen

         16  unilaterally, and by the way, it could be

         17  irrational. One agency says, oh, the bus stop is 90

         18  feet, the other agency says 150. That's just an

         19  example of how loose language in the statute runs

         20  against a constitutional constraint that Congress,

         21  or you, a legislative body, shall make no law

         22  abridging the freedom of the press.

         23                 So, it seems to me a lot of attention

         24  on the First Amendment level, as well as common

         25  decency - giving somebody notice, giving an
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          2  opportunity to be heard, providing an exception,

          3  which, of course, Mr. Freeman and the Daily News

          4  Counsel was suggesting, which is what if I fall

          5  afoul of the linear rule, but in reality if I can

          6  show you evidence that in fact there is no hazard,

          7  why shouldn't I be allowed to stay? Why is there not

          8  a reasonable exception catch-all in here?

          9                 In other words, why don't you say

         10  here is the ultimate ought, here are some

         11  suggestions as to what might be afoul, but you have

         12  a right, operator, to show reasonably that the facts

         13  that the agency is asserting based on the criteria,

         14  okay, are indeed not met. So, therefore, you should

         15  be able to continue.

         16                 It seems to me that that's not built

         17  into this. Reasonableness and hearings and things

         18  like that are not built into this. And I want to

         19  add, while the First Amendment is to some extent an

         20  abstraction to (a) the people who sell it, their

         21  business, it's a little bit different from just

         22  First Amendment, it's their livelihood, okay?

         23                 Second, it's also all of us in the

         24  City who are readers, voters; don't we have an

         25  entitlement in effect to have the process by which
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          2  these structures be protected, be clearer and have

          3  some type of hearing?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm going to have

          5  to sort of cut your testimony a little bit. We have

          6  to be out of here by 1:00, I understand there's

          7  another committee meeting.

          8                 MR. BRILL: Let me sum up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I do have, I

         10  do want the agency to come back and respond to some

         11  of the things that have been brought up. So, if you

         12  can sum up.

         13                 MR. BRILL: Let me sum up.

         14                 You've heard a lot of testimony

         15  today, I thought much of it was excellent, from the

         16  industry.

         17                 I've identified to you one problem of

         18  anyone tracking this is that there's no record. So,

         19  I would appreciate, and I've written to the

         20  Speaker's Office, I'm involved with them, they keep

         21  promising and I hope they deliver, we really should

         22  have September 2002's transcript where Mayor

         23  Doctoroff made representations to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I understand that

         25  the date for that to be finished and delivered to
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          2  you is October 2nd.

          3                 MR. BRILL: Okay. Well, I hope you

          4  won't vote before that's on the record and people

          5  have an opportunity to comment upon that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No. We're not

          7  scheduled to.

          8                 MR. BRILL: You've heard First

          9  Amendment concerns. I think you realize there's a

         10  human dimension here. I put on the record the San

         11  Francisco experience. It seems to me that there

         12  should be a greater degree of protection for the

         13  newsstand as an institution, its size and its

         14  operators than is presently in this proposed

         15  legislation, regardless of all other types of

         16  imperatives. Although, as I posed to you, there are

         17  alternative ways to deliver revenue, deliver the

         18  Municipal Art Society's aesthetics, deliver First

         19  Amendment veneration, keep the present operators and

         20  their progeny well employed. So, it seems to me we

         21  have alternative ways to go about this that

         22  harmonizes things, except for the streetscape

         23  franchisee, and they've got a lot of bus shelters to

         24  make a lot of money with.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. UHTFELDER: My name is Bernard

          3  Uhtfelder. I'm a newsstand operator. I feel like an

          4  orphan here, but, let's see, I own and operate a

          5  newsstand at 86th Street and Lexington Avenue for

          6  the past 30 years. To the best of my knowledge this

          7  newsstand has been at this location since the

          8  beginning of the past century. We might even qualify

          9  for a landmark or a historic status. We certainly

         10  are unique.

         11                 The history of the newsstand dates

         12  back to the first World War, veterans, disabled

         13  veterans were given preference to own them, and

         14  that's how I got mine. Not from the first World War,

         15  because I was a disabled veteran.

         16                 I got a license, I bought a

         17  newsstand, and built the business that has kept me

         18  going, providing for my family and with no insurance

         19  of a pension when I retire, except my Social

         20  Security.

         21                 I don't mind the life I made for

         22  myself, but I do mind that some billion dollar

         23  company can come into New York City and can convince

         24  all of my political representatives that my

         25  independence, in essence my life, is not important,
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          2  and that the franchisee controlling my newsstand

          3  will do a better job for New York City than I have

          4  been doing for the past 30 years. I don't think so.

          5  I don't think the gap advertisement or City bank

          6  advertisement or any other billboard that will

          7  completely hide my newsstand will be able to tell

          8  people how to get to the Metropolitan Museum of Art

          9  or give other directions or give change, and above

         10  all, sell newspapers.

         11                 Believe it or not, there is a person

         12  inside that box with a family, with feelings, with

         13  understanding and appreciation that he or she is

         14  here in New York City, United States of America,

         15  making a life and a living for themselves. That's

         16  not what is happening here today.

         17                 With the new law we're being treated

         18  like a non-entity - a bus shelter or like a public

         19  toilet. We're not even being treated as an equal to

         20  a telephone kiosk. We're not asking for anything

         21  from the City. We understand the problem, it's our

         22  problem also. The City needs money, we understand

         23  that. If the City is successful, we're successful.

         24  The Administration refuses to talk to the newsstand

         25  operators or our representatives. Can anybody tell
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          2  me why it's necessary for the franchisee to own my

          3  newsstand or any newsstand? I don't get it. Because

          4  it's such a mystery, it worries me.

          5                 Yesterday I received a letter from

          6  the United States Government Small Business

          7  Administration stating that there are express loans

          8  available for our businesses. Now, we can get a

          9  $45,000 loan for the new newsstand, which by the

         10  way, comes to about $13 million for the newsstands

         11  that would be replaced. That's $13 million the City

         12  does not have to negotiate with the franchisee.

         13  After all, we know that the $13 million has to come

         14  out of somebody's piece of the pie.

         15                 I don't know how things have gotten

         16  this far without one newsstand operator's input.

         17  Business has been bad for us just like every

         18  business. We're off a certain percentage. We're not

         19  immune to these hard times. These new newsstands

         20  will take away valuable display and sales space from

         21  us, that's if we're allowed to stay in the same

         22  footprints. We have no guarantee even of that under

         23  this law.

         24                 People will not even know it's a

         25  newsstand. People will come to the newsstand to buy
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          2  Levis, get movie tickets, buy a plane ticket, make a

          3  deposit, wait for a bus, or just go to the toilet,

          4  they just won't know what we are because of the

          5  billboards.

          6                 Please think about this legislation.

          7  There are alternatives where everybody will be

          8  happy, if not pleased, and it won't cost the City a

          9  penny. We can do this, we're business people, but

         10  you at least have to give us a chance. Talk to us.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Quick question.

         13  If it's not imposing on you, how much did you pay to

         14  build your newsstand?

         15                 MR. UHTFELDER: Thirty years ago, I

         16  don't remember, it was only $1,500 or something like

         17  that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With the times,

         19  okay.

         20                 MR. UHTFELDER: Yes, it's a long time

         21  ago. And it wasn't as elaborate. You know, it was a

         22  little box and it's been expanded through the years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: How much would

         24  you say then you put into it over the years?

         25                 MR. UHTFELDER: Maybe $15,000,

                                                            113

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  $20,000, you know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir.

          4                 MR. STOLLMAN: Good day. My name is

          5  Steve Stollman. I'm a former news dealer for three

          6  years. I had the newsstand in front of City Hall on

          7  Murray Street and Broadway for awhile, and I am the

          8  person who gathered the forces to put together the

          9  last lawsuit against the City, the Giuliani program

         10  about newsstands, which we won in Federal Court, and

         11  which I think is having an impact on discussions

         12  that are taking place here today.

         13                 I'd also like to say that someone

         14  needs to speak for the 1,200 news dealers who are

         15  not any longer in business, who were forced out of

         16  business, and whey they were forced out of business

         17  was because of media control that took place 100

         18  years ago or 75 years ago in New York City in the

         19  form of distributors of magazines and newspapers who

         20  were monopolies, informed by force, and made it

         21  impossible for news dealers to make a living,

         22  because there is so much cheating on their bills, so

         23  much stealing from blind news dealers and disabled

         24  vets that they are unable to survive. So, 1,200 out

         25  of 1,500 people have been forced out of business, by
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          2  a previous example of media consolidation, which

          3  left them in the hands, in the gnarled fists of some

          4  people who cared not at all for them that really

          5  wanted to put them out of business, and with the

          6  cooperation of the landlords and the cooperation of

          7  City government, by not providing newsstands with

          8  any alternative means of income, except that which

          9  was poisoned by these monopolies, you relegated news

         10  dealers, four out of five of them, to death, and now

         11  you have this new program.

         12                 So, the first aspect of the program,

         13  a lot of people have talked about the First

         14  Amendment aspects of how many newsstands there will

         15  be, but what is a newsstand. Well, once upon a time

         16  it was news boys and news girls who were orphans and

         17  because they were morally challenged, they were

         18  given to the newspapers as a gift so they would have

         19  a distribution system for their newspapers and they

         20  were pushed out into the street at 6:00 in the

         21  morning to distribute their papers. After awhile,

         22  once the elevated trains come in, some people are

         23  able to crawl under steps and eventually they became

         24  newsstands, but everything that was done for news

         25  dealers up to this moment and including this moment,
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          2  has been in the most patronizing, tight-fisted

          3  inelegant way that I can ever imagine. First of all,

          4  how can you take away the side displays from

          5  newsstands, which are the primary way that they

          6  reach the public? People approach newsstands from

          7  the side. Once you're going past the newsstand, you

          8  already have to be concerned about the traffic

          9  that's coming at you, et cetera, but since you're

         10  facing the newsstand, you're walking towards it, you

         11  now have an uninterrupted look at the display at the

         12  publications which are being sold.

         13                 Will those displays will no longer

         14  exist. As a matter of fact, you will have a hard

         15  time distinguishing that this is even a newsstand.

         16                 So, in the first place, there is an

         17  enormous harm that is being done to the

         18  distribution, the free distribution of a variety of

         19  ideas and points of view, because these publications

         20  will no longer enjoy the displays that they did

         21  previously, their most important displays. So, you

         22  have really harmed, and you are going to harm, and

         23  there is going to be a First Amendment lawsuit, not

         24  based upon the fact that you may or may not be

         25  providing the proper criteria for the placement of
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          2  newsstands, but the fact that you have destroyed, or

          3  you're about to destroy one of the primary assets

          4  that newsstands have, in terms of being able to

          5  display their own merchandise. And nobody has

          6  mentioned that, and I'm really sorry to see that.

          7                 Also, by destroying the sides, which

          8  is presumably where the ads are going to go, I don't

          9  think you're going to allow eight by ten foot ads on

         10  the back, because that would be a horror show

         11  putting full-size billboards in New York City,

         12  they'll probably go on the sides. That means you now

         13  have to get into the stand from the front. Or that

         14  means there has to be a door. So, now the 12 feet or

         15  ten feet you have is reduced by 20 or 25 percent

         16  because you no longer have the access from the side

         17  for your doorway. So, now you've lost your doorway,

         18  you've lost your displays, you are losing your

         19  business and it is being taken away from you piece

         20  by piece.

         21                 I'd also like to say some other

         22  things. The New York Times, and the New York Daily

         23  News, I was very pleased with their testimony today,

         24  I think they made some very good points, but the New

         25  York Times, you may or may not be aware, was selling
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          2  for 75 cents up until a short time ago, and the news

          3  dealer was receiving a 14 percent commission -- a 14

          4  cent commission. That 14 cents represented one penny

          5  under the traditional 20 percent that they've always

          6  gotten. When they went up to a dollar, they decided

          7  that the news dealer would receive 11 cents. Eleven

          8  cents is one penny more than 10 percent - half of

          9  the traditional income that they have received from

         10  the sale of newspapers.

         11                 Yesterday even that was made a

         12  complete joke of. The New York Post decided to give

         13  out its newspaper. So news dealers gave out the New

         14  York Post newspaper, received nothing for the work

         15  that they did and lost all the income that they

         16  might have derived from the sale of a newspaper that

         17  actually enjoyed, gave them a profit.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Steve, I don't

         19  mean to cut you off, but you know, you've been at

         20  this Committee a number of times, but we're talking

         21  about the specific amendments today to the newsstand

         22  legislation.

         23                 The issues that you're basically

         24  talking about I mean we've discussed ad infinitum

         25  the reason for this hearing is how do you feel about
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          2  the proposed legislation? Please direct your

          3  comments to that.

          4                 MR. STOLLMAN: No, this is about the

          5  proposed legislation says that you are going to

          6  destroy the displays that the news dealers have, and

          7  that is a fact, and that is a tremendous attack upon

          8  their First Amendment Rights, which is going to have

          9  to be answered in court, because it does not appear

         10  that there is any chance that this Committee or the

         11  City DOT is going to respond to these issues in a

         12  serious way.

         13                 Another question is, and, you know,

         14  yes, you're right, do I want to talk about

         15  electronic billboards that have now started to

         16  appear on subway stations and the fact that we're

         17  now talking about the possibility of TV screens over

         18  these things, instead of just newsstands? Are people

         19  going to stop after they watch TV to buy a

         20  newspaper?

         21                 We just made an agreement with

         22  Snapple to put sugar water in schools, and there are

         23  billboards attached to those machines --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We're under time

         25  constraint, okay?
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          2                 MR. STOLLMAN: Well, you gave a great

          3  deal of time to a good number of people, so please

          4  allow me to at least mention these points.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What I would like

          6  to hear is specific comments to the legislation.

          7                 MR. STOLLMAN: Here is the first

          8  comment. The first comment is that this hearing was

          9  announced on Tuesday, yet the hearing is taking

         10  place on Thursday. I thought there was a sunshine

         11  law in this City which required a seven-day public

         12  notice and a printing in the City Record.

         13                 Why is this hearing taking place

         14  today? Why was there no time for all the news

         15  dealers, the 300 news dealers of New York City to be

         16  notified about this so they could show up today in

         17  force, en masse, to really let you know how they

         18  feel about this? Are you following the law, number

         19  one?

         20                 Number two, you want to avoid ULURP.

         21  This is clearly part of the City's policy to try and

         22  craft a project which is identical to the previous

         23  approved project and therefore avoids ULURP. ULURP

         24  is the only means that the general public has to do

         25  what anybody else could not do today because they
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          2  didn't know about this hearing, which is comment

          3  upon and have an influence upon your legislation.

          4  Why are you considering preventing the general

          5  public, not going through ULURP and preventing the

          6  general public from having their say about this? I

          7  think that is as outrageous as having this meeting

          8  without any notice.

          9                 I'd like to say that when I worked

         10  for the Lighthouse for the Blind for over ten years,

         11  I found that the differences in the needs of

         12  individual news dealers in terms of design was

         13  enormous. For you to expect a couple of prototypes

         14  to satisfy all the design needs and specifications

         15  of the people who are here now, if you think that

         16  doesn't diminish the quality of their life, I think

         17  you are extremely wrong.

         18                 I think also newsstands have already

         19  been subjected to enormous pressure because of your

         20  willingness to allow planters and other nonsensical

         21  objects to be put on the sidewalk in favor of

         22  newsstands that provide the general public with a

         23  real service and provide people with real income,

         24  why have you allowed the landlords to push

         25  newsstands and the possibility of other newsstand
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          2  locations off the street in this way, I think it's

          3  extremely wrong of you.

          4                 I would just like to say basically

          5  that this hearing is probably not legal, what you're

          6  doing is probably not legal. Some of it will have to

          7  be brought out in court, some of it should be

          8  brought out in the press, because I think you're

          9  showing a substantial disregard for the rights of

         10  the First Amendment, the rights of news dealers and

         11  the rights of the people of the City of New York.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you for

         13  your comments.

         14                 MR. STOLLMAN: You're welcome.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to call

         16  up the agency reps so they have an opportunity to

         17  respond to some of the issues that came up.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you

         19  for the opportunity. Let me begin by addressing the

         20  comments that have been made about the pedestrian

         21  level of service and its connection to First

         22  Amendment challenges.

         23                 Part of what's so surprising about

         24  hearing this, is that the existing pedestrian level

         25  of service, which is just mirrored in the
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          2  legislation, came about because of successful

          3  litigation from the newspaper industry. They

          4  claimed, and won, that the old standard was too

          5  general and that you needed a standard that was

          6  specific and complied with First Amendment.

          7                 As a result of that, the Council, the

          8  City and the newspaper industry and the newsstand

          9  industry worked together and pulled this exact

         10  standard, which is the federal highway safety

         11  standard -- help me here.

         12                 MS. GOULD: It's an industry standard

         13  developed by the Transportation Research Board and

         14  the Federal Highway Administration. It's used

         15  throughout the United States and we use it for a

         16  slew of other items that we look at at DOT.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: And the

         18  idea that its use as mandated through this

         19  litigation is now suddenly irresponsible, represents

         20  discrimination, is contrary to First Amendment, at

         21  best is ironic.

         22                 MS. GOULD: And just on the other

         23  items, I do want to reiterate that sidewalk cafes

         24  are limited as to what streets they can be sited on.

         25  There are entire zones in the City where you cannot
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          2  file a sidewalk cafe application.

          3                 As far as bus stop shelters are

          4  concerned, they are basically sited with community

          5  board approval. If the community Board does not

          6  approve, it's binding, we do not put the bus shelter

          7  in. For us, we let the community decide if their

          8  sidewalk is too dense.

          9                 As far as APTs are concerned, I'm

         10  sure because of the size of them we will use a level

         11  of service analysis.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: And just

         13  to clarify what we're hearing therefore is

         14  newsstands aren't subject to community board

         15  approval, they're not subject to exclusion zones.

         16  They have protections of their own, because of the

         17  First Amendment nature of the activity.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I understand that

         19  while I was gone for a moment there was a comment

         20  made about the Deputy Mayor making a commitment; do

         21  you want to respond to that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: That

         23  statement was untrue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I also understand

         25  that when it comes to the section that relates to
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          2  the Art Commission that is underlined, that the

          3  logic behind that was actually we're just moving the

          4  section of the language from one area of existing

          5  legislation to a new section, and that is why it's

          6  underlined?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you,

          8  that's correct. We repealed part, and it was

          9  drafting clarity. It does not represent anything

         10  new.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Bear with me a

         12  moment.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: May I ask a

         15  question while you ponder?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Absolutely. I'm

         17  sorry, Council Member Vann.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: The reduction in

         19  newsstands have been sited a number of times, 1,500

         20  whatever, down to 300, I'm wondering what the

         21  Administration believes is the reason for this

         22  reduction, and is there any relationship to the fact

         23  that you can buy newspapers from a lot of other

         24  retailer establishments that at one time, in my

         25  recollection, I'm a Brooklyn guy, they were

                                                            125

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  available. Would you comment on that?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you

          4  for asking that question. The number 1,500 has been

          5  bandied around, I've also seen that in the paper. To

          6  the best of our historical research, that number has

          7  not been true since 1940, and clearly one of the

          8  things that has changed since 1940 is, as you say,

          9  the great expansion of opportunities and places to

         10  buy those newspapers.

         11                 As far as our records go back, we

         12  know, thanks to some historians in DCA, that going

         13  back at least 20 years there have never been more

         14  than approximately 500 stands. So, yes, the numbers

         15  have gone down, recently, not particularly in the

         16  last 15 years, let me again say for the record, we

         17  have never shut a newsstand down. So, whatever those

         18  reasons are that newsstands have stopped, I can

         19  understand the concerns of circulation managers,

         20  it's not about regulation, and we don't know what it

         21  is about. When we met with the publishers and they

         22  expressed their concerns, we posed the same question

         23  to them. We said if it's not shutting down stands,

         24  what is it? They didn't, to my knowledge they didn't

         25  know, and we don't know.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sort of in light

          4  of that question, when you did the 2002 review, how

          5  many actually passed of the existing newsstands?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I

          7  apologize. The answer I'm prepared to give, if you

          8  don't mind, is how many didn't pass.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Because

         11  that's the number that I was so focused on. I

         12  apologize. We can estimate, therefore, what the

         13  other number is.

         14                 Sixteen newsstands did not pass

         15  renewal standards in 2002. I would also like to

         16  point out that we have determined that of those 16

         17  that did not pass the renewal standard, again the

         18  same standards in the past as would be in the bill,

         19  15 of those 16 failed for those same reasons for at

         20  least 15 years, it's just that nobody ever did

         21  anything about it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And what are you

         23  doing about it now?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Say that

         25  again?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean, are those

          3  16 still operating? Are you moving to close them

          4  down?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Several

          6  have relocated. Some took some abandoned stands, and

          7  used that as a means of relocation, and most notably

          8  there are six remaining, and what's interesting

          9  about that is what we did in consultation with Mr.

         10  Bookman, he claims we've never met, and

         11  unfortunately that's also untrue, but what we did in

         12  consultation with Mr. Bookman is worked out a

         13  negotiation on how to help these six, and the answer

         14  is we came up with this catchment deal and core

         15  public safety criteria approach that has been

         16  capsulated in this amendment. All six of those

         17  stands using that criteria within days located a new

         18  spot that would work. Unfortunately, presumably

         19  based upon the advice of their counsel, they have

         20  refused to proceed with the application to move.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What was the

         22  evaluation process, the criteria that you used for

         23  the 2002 review?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I think

         25  I'll refer to DOT.
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          2                 MS. GOULD: Some of them do -- if it

          3  was a stand that's post 1991, there's an extensive

          4  list of siting criteria, including the six that are

          5  in the shorter list right now, things like tree pits

          6  and telephones, all of those things are looked at if

          7  it's a stand that's post '91.

          8                 Before that there's phases of

          9  grandfathering. Everybody got a level of service

         10  analysis, everybody was measured a distance from a

         11  hydrant, the corner is looked at, as well as clear

         12  path for everybody. But with the grandfathered

         13  stands, that universe, it's a varying degree, some

         14  of them have even further criteria, but that's the

         15  course that everybody is looked at.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: And also

         17  just to clarify, the six stands that I referred to

         18  earlier, their problem, the reason they weren't

         19  renewed is pedestrian level of service, which has

         20  never been covered by any version of grandfathering,

         21  it's core public safety.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Councilman Vann.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes. Thank you.

         24  One last question.

         25                 Is a judicial challenge avoidable in
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          2  your estimation? You welcome it, or can it be

          3  avoided?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I have too

          5  many friends in Corp Counsel, I never welcome

          6  litigation. What saddens me on this subject is that

          7  when we negotiated with the newsstand industry and

          8  came up with what we considered to be and what the

          9  Council now considers to be, a fair approach, when

         10  push came to shove, they refused. And, so, what that

         11  has led this Administration to believe is that there

         12  is no deal that can be struck that will be adhered

         13  to, and that in the end what we're hearing they're

         14  looking for is for the Council and the

         15  Administration to forever ignore public safety

         16  issues for a structure that we allow to be on a City

         17  sidewalk, and it's just a position we could never

         18  agree to, I imagine for obvious reasons.

         19                 So, I guess a shorter answer to your

         20  question would be I'm not sure we could avoid that

         21  litigation. I think we would win it, but I certainly

         22  hope it would never happen.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Just a follow-up

         24  question. Assuming public safety as being

         25  sacrosanct, is there room for negotiation around
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          2  other issues?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, I

          4  suppose it depends. We've been negotiating, this

          5  bill actually represents a substantial change from

          6  the bill that we initially instituted and we've been

          7  negotiating with some very talented staff on your

          8  end to get to this point.

          9                 So, you know, we're obviously open to

         10  negotiation, as we've shown.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Two quick

         13  questions.

         14                 Could you provide us with a list of

         15  the criteria that was pre-1991 that you alluded to

         16  earlier? And could you comment on the issue of the

         17  size that's needed for the ADA compliance?

         18                 I think the compromise bill states

         19  three feet is necessary?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean, the

         22  architect that testified said five feet would be

         23  necessary for a turn around?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What actually is
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          2  the figure?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, the

          4  short answer is we don't know, and what the bill

          5  does is it mandates that the City live up to its

          6  responsibilities under the ADA.

          7                 What we tried to do, in part because

          8  of the concerns expressed by the industry and by the

          9  Council, is try to come up with as reasonable and

         10  quick an estimate as we could as to who out there

         11  might have that need to expand. And the way we did

         12  that was we tried to take some of the old research

         13  from Corporate Counsel back in '97 when the City

         14  first came close on coordinated street furniture,

         15  that was their estimate. We couldn't be specific

         16  because we don't know what the stands are going to

         17  look like, because we obviously haven't chosen a

         18  franchisee, so we tried to use that criteria, we

         19  were very -- we've never hidden what that criteria

         20  is and said based on that criteria the universe

         21  looked no larger than 20, in terms of who is

         22  currently less than three feet. And it's

         23  unfortunately the best guess we can give you right

         24  now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We obviously are

          4  not taking a vote on this matter today. We will take

          5  under advisement all the concerns from the

          6  testimony, and we will advise when the next hearing

          7  is on this.

          8                 This closes this Subcommittee on

          9  Zoning and Franchises. Thank you, everybody.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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